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4€” FINANCIAL INFORMATION ItemA 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) PACIRA BIOSCIENCES A INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (In thousands, except share

assets19,771A 21 504A A A AAAAAAAATotal current asset3632 214A 509, 994A Noncurrent available- for sale mvestmentsa€ "A 2,410A Fixed assets, net168,850A 173,927A Right-of-use
assets, net56, 264A 61,020A Goodwill163,243A 163,243A Intanglble assets, net454, 614A 483,258A Deferred tax asset5135 136A 144, 485A Investments and other

llablhtlesSO 146A 54,806A Contingent consideration22, 401A 24 698A Other liabilities13,005A 13, 573A AAA A AAAA A A Total hablhtles767 542A 704 256A Commltments and contingencies
(Note 15)Stockholdersa€™ equity: :A A Preferred stock, par value $0.001; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding at JuneA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31,

20234€”A 4€”A Common stock, par value $0.001; 250,000,000 shares authorized; 46,954,599 shares issued and 46,117,359 shares outstanding at JuneA 30, 2024 and 46,481,174 shares issued
and outstandmg at DecemberA 31 202347A 46A Treasury stock, at cost, 837,240 and zero shares at ]uneA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively, 1ncIu51ve of excise

1ncomelOSA 247TAAAAAAAAAAA Total stockholdersa€ ™ equ1ty879 278A 870,130AAAAAAAAA A A Total hablhtles and stockholdersa€™ equity$1,646,820A $1,574,386A See
accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 4Table of ContentsPACIRA BIOSCIENCES,A INC.CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS(In thousands, except per share amounts)(Unaudited)Three Months EndedJune 30 Six Months EndedJune

revenuesl 78,023A 169,467A 345, 140A 329,808A Operating expenses AAA A Cost of goods sold44, 262A 48,207A 91,678A 97 227A Research and

development20,338A 18,824A 38,576A 35,964A Selling, general and administrative68,126A 64,850A 140,152A 135, 693A Amortization of acquired intangible

assets14,322A 14,322A 28,644A 28,644A Contingent consideration charges (gains), restructuring charges and other2,735A (16,613)4,638A (4,506)A AA A A A A A A A Total operating
expensesl49 783A 129, 590A 303, 688A 293,022A Income from operat10n328 240A 39, 877A 41,452A 36, 786A Other income (expense) A A A A Interest



(22,359)(5,153)Net income$18,886A $25,763A $27,865A $6,227A Net income per share:A A A A Basic net income per common share$0.41A $0.56A $0.60A $0.14A Diluted net income per
common share$0.39A $0.51A $0.58A $0.13A Weighted average common shares

outstanding:A A A A A A A Basic46,174A 46,088A 46,337A 46,019A A A A A A Diluted50,539A 52,054A 51,366A 46,285A A See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial
statements.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 5Table of ContentsPACIRA BIOSCIENCES,A INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME(In thousands)(Unaudited)Three Months Endedjune 30,Six Months EndedJune 30, A 2024202320242023Net income$18, 886A $25,763A $27,865A $6,227A Other comprehensive (loss)
income:A A Net unrealized (loss) gain on investments, net of tax(52)(35)(160)216A Foreign currency translation adjustments‘SA (1)18A (9)Total other comprehensive (loss) income(47)(36)
(142)207A Comprehensive income$18,839A $25,727A $27,723A $6,434A A See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-
Q | Page 6Table of ContentsPACIRA BIOSCIENCES,A INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS&€™ EQUITYFOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
AND 2023(In thousands)(Unaudited)A Number of Shares OutstandingAdditionalPaid-InCapitalAccumulatedDeficitAccumulatedOtherComprehensiveIncomeA A Common SharesTreasury
SharesCommon StockTreasury StockTotalBalance at March 31, 202446,517A 4€”A $47A $a€”A $989,780A $(97,817)$152A $892,162A Vested restricted stock

units381A a€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A Common stock withheld for employee withholding tax liabilities on vested restricted stock

unitsa€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A (378)a€”A a€”A (378)Common stock issued under employee stockpurchase plan56A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A 1,364A a€”A a4€”A 1,364A Stock-based

compensationa€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 12,524A a€”A 4€”A 12,524A Purchase of treasury stock, inclusive of excise taxa€”A (837)a€”A (25,121)a€”A a€”A a€”A (25,121)Purchase of capped call
transaction, net of taxa€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A (20,112)a€”A a€”A (20,112)Other comprehensive loss (Note 10)a€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (47)(47)Net

incomea€”A a€”A &4€”A 4€”A 4€”A 18,886A a€”A 18,886A Balance at June 30, 202446,954A (837)$47A $(25,121)$983,178A $(78,931)$105A $879,278A CommonA StockAdditionalPaid-
InCapitalAccumulatedDeficitAccumulatedOtherComprehensiveLossSharesAmountTotalBalance at March 31, 202345,970A $46A $936,419A $(168,287)$(137)$768,041A Exercise of stock
options50A 4€”A 1,580A a€”A a4€”A 1,580A Vested restricted stock units339A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A Common stock issued under employee stockpurchase

plan50A a€”A 1,672A a€”A a€”A 1,672A Stock-based compensationa€”A a€”A 10,955A a€”A a€”A 10,955A Other comprehensive loss (Note 10)a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A (36)(36)Net

incomea€”A 4€”A a4€”A 25,763A a4€”A 25,763A Balance at June 30, 202346,409A $46A $950,626A $(142,524)$(173)$807,975A See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial
statements.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 7Table of ContentsPACIRA BIOSCIENCES,A INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS4€™
EQUITYFOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023(In thousands)(Unaudited)A Number of Shares OutstandingAdditionalPaid-
InCapltalAccumulatedDef1c1tAccumulatedOtherComprehenswelncomeA A Common SharesTreasury SharesCommon StockTreasury StockTotalBalance at December 31,

202346,481A 4€”A $46A $a€”A $976,633A $(106 796)$247A $87O 130A Vested restricted stock units417A a€”A 1A a€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 1A Common stock withheld for employee withholding
tax liabilities on vested restricted stock unitsa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (382)a€”A a€”A (382)Common stock issued under employee stockpurchase

plan56A a€”A a€”A a€”A 1,364A a€”A a€”A 1,364A Stock-based compensationa€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A 25,675A a4€”A a€”A 25,675A Purchase of treasury stock, inclusive of excise

taxa€”A (837)a€”A (25,121)a€”A a€”A a€”A (25,121)Purchase of capped call transaction, net of taxa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (20,112)a€”A a€”A (20,112)Other comprehensive loss (Note

10)a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (142)(142)Net incomea€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A 27,865A a€”A 27,865A Balance at June 30,

202446,954A (837)$47A $(25,121)$983,178A $(78,931)$105A $879,278A CommonA StockAdditionalPaid-
InCapltalAccumulatedDeflcltAccumulatedOtherComprehensweLossSharesAmountTotalBalance at December 31, 202245,928A $46A $924,095A $(148,751)$(380)$775,010A Exercise of stock
optlonSGZA a€”A 1,914A a€”A a€”A 1,914A Vested restricted stock units369A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A Common stock issued under employee stockpurchase

plan50A 4€”A 1,672A a€”A 4€”A 1,672A Stock-based compensationa€”A 4€”A 22,945A a€”A 4€”A 22,945A Other comprehensive income (Note 10)a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A 207A 207A Net
incomea€”A a€"A a€”A 6,227A a€”A 6,227A Balance at June 30, 202346,409A $46A $950,626A $(142,524)$(173)$807,975A See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial
statements.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 8Table of ContentsPACIRA BIOSCIENCES,A INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS A (In
thousands)(Unaudited)Six Months EndedJune 30, A 202420230perating activities:A A Net income$27,865A $6,227A Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:A A Deferred taxes15,998A 4,100A Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets37,289A 38,656A Amortization of debt issuance costs1,444A 1,628A Amortization
of debt discount47A 703A (Gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt(7,518)16, 926A Stock-based compensation25,675A 22,945A Changes in contingent consideration(2,297)(6,640)Other net
losses109A 11A Changes in operating assets and liabilities: A A Accounts receivable, net776A (683)Inventories, net91 5A 3,933A Prepaid expenses and other assets(1,309)(4,369)Accounts
payable2,772A 9,683A Accrued expenses and income taxes payable1,361A (30,771)Other liabilities(790)278A Net cash provided by operating activities102,337A 62,627A Investing

activities:A A Purchases of fixed assets(4,426)(9,969)Purchases of available-for-sale mvestments(lOS 781)(69, 509)Sa1es of available-for-sale investments79,462A 159,745A Purchases of debt
investmentsa€”A (6,758)Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities(30,745)73,509A Financing activities:A A Proceeds from exercises of stock optionsa€”A 1,913A Proceeds from shares
issued under employee stock purchase plan1,364A 1,673A Payment of employee withholding taxes on restricted stock unit vests(382)a€”A Purchase of treasury stock(25,000)a4€”A Proceeds
from 2029 convertible senior notes287,500A 4€”A Proceeds from Term loan A facilitya€”A 149,550A Repayment of 2024 convertible senior notes(8,641)a€”A Repayment of 2025 convertible
senior notes(190,994)a€”A Repayment of Term loan B facilityé€"A (296,875)Repayment of Term loan A facility(5,625)(2,813)Purchase of capped call transactions(26,709)a€”A Debt
extinguishment costsa€”A (5,750)Payment of debt issuance and financing costs(9,350)(1,163)Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities22,163A (153,465)Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalent593,755A (17,329)Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period153,298A 104,139A Cash and cash equivalents, end of period$247,053A $86,810A See accompanying
condensed notes to consolidated financial statements.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 9Table of ContentsPACIRA BIOSCIENCES,A INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)A A (In thousands)(Unaudited)Six Months EndedJune 30,20242023Supplemental cash flow information:A Cash paid for

interest$6,988A $20,802A Net cash paid for income taxes$4,667A $795A Non-cash investing and financing activities:A A Fixed assets included in accounts payable and accrued

liabilities$604A $2,388A See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 10Table of ContentsPACIRA
BIOSCIENCES,A INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Unaudited)NOTE 1a€”DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSPacira BioSciences,A Inc. and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the &€ceCompanya€ or a€cePaciraad€) is the therapeutic area leader in non-opioid pain management with a stated corporate mission of providing non-opioid pain management
options to as many patients as possible and redefining the role of opioids for rescue therapy only. The Company4€™s long-acting, local analgesic, EXPARELA® (bupivacaine liposome injectable
suspension), was commercially launched in the United States, or U.S., in April 2012 and approved in select European countries and the United Kingdom, or U.K., in November 2021. EXPAREL
utilizes the Companya€ ™ s proprietary multivesicular liposome, or pMVL, drug delivery technology that encapsulates drugs without altering their molecular structure and releases them over a
desired period of time. In November 2021, the Company acquired Flexion Therapeutics, Inc., or Flexion (the &€ceFlexion Acquisitiona€), and added ZILRETTAA® (triamcinolone acetonide
extended-release injectable suspension) to its product portfolio. ZILRETTA is the first and only extended-release, intra-articular (meaning in the joint) injection indicated for the management of
osteoarthritis, or OA, knee pain. In April 2019, the Company added ioveraA°A® to its commercial offering with the acquisition of MyoScience, Inc., or MyoScience (the 4€ceMyoScience
Acquisitiona€). The ioveraA® system is a handheld cryoanalgesia device used to deliver a precise, controlled application of cold temperature to targeted nerves.Pacira is subject to risks common
to companies in similar industries and stages, including, but not limited to, competition from larger companies, reliance on revenue from three products, reliance on a limited number of
wholesalers, reliance on a limited number of manufacturing sites, new technological innovations, dependence on key personnel, reliance on third-party service providers and sole source
suppliers, protection of proprietary technology, compliance with government regulations and risks related to cybersecurity.The Company is managed and operated as a single business focused
on the development, manufacture, marketing, distribution and sale of non-opioid pain management and regenerative health solutions. The Company is managed by a single management team,
and consistent with its organizational structure, the Chief Executive Officera€”who is the Companya€™s chief operating decision makera€”manages and allocates resources at a consolidated
level. Effective January 2, 2024, the Company appointed a new Chief Executive Officer. Consistent with the Companya€™ s predecessor chief operating decision maker, the Company views its
business as one reportable operating segment to evaluate its performance, allocate resources, set operational targets and forecast its future financial results. NOTE 2a€”SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of Presentation and Principles of ConsolidationThese interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, or GAAP, and in accordance with the rulesA and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(the 4€ceSECA€E), for interim reporting. Pursuant to these rulesA and regulations, certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in complete annual financial statements have
been condensed or omitted. Therefore, these interim condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited annual consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto included in the Companya€™s Annual Report on FormA 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the 4€022023 Annual Reporta€).The condensed consolidated financial
statements at JuneA 30, 2024, and for the three and six-month periods ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023, are unaudited, but include all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring
adjustments) which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly the financial information set forth herein in accordance with GAAP. The condensed consolidated balance sheet
at DecemberA 31, 2023 is derived from the audited consolidated financial statements included in the Companya€™s 2023 Annual Report. The condensed consolidated financial statements as
presented reflect certain reclassifications from previously issued financial statements to conform to the current year presentation. The accounts of wholly-owned subsidiaries are included in the
condensed consolidated financial statements. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.The results of operations for these interim periods are not
necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any other interim periods or for the full year.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 11Table of ContentsConcentration of
Major CustomersThe Company sells EXPAREL through a drop-ship program under which orders are processed through wholesalers (including AmerisourceBergen Health Corporation, Cardinal
Health, Inc. and McKesson Drug Company), but shipments of the product are sent directly to individual accounts, such as hospitals, ambulatory surgery centers and individual physicians. The
table below includes the percentage of revenues comprised by the Companya€™s three largest wholesalers in each period presented: Three Months EndedJune 30,Six Months EndedJune
30,2024202320242023A Largest wholesaler34%33%35%32%A Second largest wholesaler22%24%23%24%A Third largest wholesaler19%20%19%21%A A A A A Total75%77%77%77%Recent
Accounting Pronouncements Not Adopted as of JuneA 30, 2024In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, 2023-07,
Segment Reporting (Topic 280), Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. The ASU amendment improves reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced
disclosures about significant segment expenses on an interim and annual basis. The new segment disclosure requirements apply for entities with a single reportable segment. The ASU&€™s
amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods thereafter, with early adoption permitted. The ASU amendment will require adoption on a
retrospective basis. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2023-07 on its consolidated financial statements.In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income
Taxes (Topic 740), Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. The ASU amendment addresses investor requests for more transparency about income tax information through improvements to
income tax disclosures primarily related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. The ASU&€™s amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2024 and may be adopted on a prospective or retrospective basis. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2023-09 on its consolidated financial statements.NOTE
34€”REVENUERevenue from Contracts with CustomersThe Companya€™ s net product sales consist of (i) EXPAREL in the U.S., the European Union, or E.U., and the U.K.; (ii) ZILRETTA in the
U.S.; (iii) ioveraA® in the U.S., Canada and Europe and (iv) sales of its bupivacaine liposome injectable suspension for veterinary use. Royalty revenues are related to a collaborative licensing
agreement from the sale of its bupivacaine liposome injectable suspension for veterinary use. The Company does not consider revenue from sources other than sales of EXPAREL and ZILRETTA
to be material sources of its consolidated revenue. As such, the following disclosure is limited to revenue associated with net product sales of EXPAREL and ZILRETTA. Net Product SalesThe
Company sells EXPAREL through a drop-ship program under which orders are processed through wholesalers based on orders of the product placed by end-users, namely hospitals, ambulatory
surgery centers and healthcare provider offices. EXPAREL is delivered directly to the end-user without the wholesaler ever taking physical possession of the product. The Company primarily
sells ZILRETTA to specialty distributors and specialty pharmacies, who then subsequently resell ZILRETTA to physicians, clinics and certain medical centers or hospitals. The Company also
contracts directly with healthcare providers and intermediaries such as group purchasing organizations, or GPOs. Product revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods are
transferred to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring those goods. EXPAREL and ZILRETTA revenue is
recorded at the time the products are transferred to the customer.Revenues from sales of products are recorded net of returns allowances, prompt payment discounts, service fees, government
rebates, volume rebates and chargebacks. These reserves are based on estimates of the amounts earned or to be claimed on the related sales. These amounts are treated as variable
consideration, estimated and recognized as a reduction of the transaction price at the time of the sale, using the most likely amount method, except for returns, which is based on the expected
Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 12Table of Contentsvalue method. The Company includes these estimated amounts in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a
significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized for such transaction will not occur, or when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.Chargebacks for fees
and discounts represent the estimated obligations resulting from contractual commitments to sell products to Department of Veteran Affairs hospitals, participating GPO members, 340B
qualified entities and other contracted customers at prices lower than the list price. The 340B Drug Discount Program is a U.S. federal government program that requires participating drug
manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to eligible health care organizations and covered entities at reduced prices. Customers claim the difference between the amount invoiced and the
discounted selling price through a chargeback issued by a wholesaler. Reserves are established in the same period that the related revenue is recognized, resulting in a reduction of product
revenue and trade receivables, net. Chargeback amounts are determined at the time of sale and the Company generally issues credits for such amounts within weeks of receiving notification
from a wholesaler. Reserves for chargebacks consist of anticipated credits the Company expects to issue based on expected units sold and chargebacks that customers have claimed for which
credits have not yet been issued.The calculation for some of these items requires management to make estimates based on sales data, historical return data, contracts, statutory requirements
and other related information that may become known in the future. The adequacy of these provisions is reviewed on a quarterly basis.Accounts ReceivableThe majority of accounts receivable
arise from product sales and represent amounts due from wholesalers, hospitals, ambulatory surgery centers, specialty distributors, specialty pharmacies and individual physicians. Payment
terms generally range fromA zero to four months from the date of the transaction, and accordingly, there is no significant financing component.Performance ObligationsA performance
obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer and is the unit of account in Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, 606. A contracta€™s
transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied.At contract inception, the Company assesses
the goods promised in its contracts with customers and identifies a performance obligation for each promise to transfer to the customer a good that is distinct. When identifying individual
performance obligations, the Company considers all goods promised in the contract regardless of whether explicitly stated in the customer contract or implied by customary business practices.
The Companya€™s contracts with customers require it to transfer an individual distinct product, which represents a single performance obligation. The Companya€™s performance obligation
with respect to its product sales is satisfied at a point in time, which transfers control upon delivery of EXPAREL and ZILRETTA to its customers. The Company considers control to have
transferred upon delivery because the customer has legal title to the asset, physical possession of the asset has been transferred, the customer has significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset and the Company has a present right to payment at that time.Disaggregated RevenueThe following table represents disaggregated net product sales in the periods presented as



follows (in thousands):Three Months Endedjune 30,Six Months EndedJune 30,2024202320242023Net product o R R . . o

sales:A A A EXPAREL$136,852A $135,127A $269,282A $265,535A A A A ZILRETTA30,707A 29,261A 56,546A 53,595A A A A ioveraA°5,674A 4,384A 10,704A 8,385A A A A Bupivacaine liposome
injectable suspension3,154A 695A 5,679A 1,383A A A A A A A Total net product sales$176,387A $169,467A $342,211A $328,898A Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 13Table
of ContentsNOTE 44€”INVENTORIESThe components ofﬂinvenAtorieAs net are as follows (in thousands) :June 30,December 31,20242023Raw materials$52, 340A $54,099A Work-in-

process23,649A 31,215A Finished goods27,449A 19,039A A A A A A Total$103,438A $104,353A NOTE 5a€”FIXED ASSETSFixed assets, net, summarized by major category, consist of the
following (in thousands):June 30 Decemher 31 20242023Machmery and equipment (1)$106 877A $121,773A Leasehold improvements58, 835A 61,826A Computer equipment and

depreciated machmery and equipment associated with its 45- hter EXPAREL manufacturmg process at its contract manufacturing fac1hty located in Swindon, England. The Company continues
to operate its 200-liter EXPAREL manufacturing process at the same facility.(2) In July 2024, a new 200-liter EXPAREL manufacturing suite at the Companya€™s Science Center Campus in San
Diego, California was placed into service, for which approximately $76.1A million will be reclassified from construction in progress to machinery and equipment and, to a lesser extent, leasehold
improvements in the third quarter of 2024.For the three months ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023, depreciation expense was $4.5 million and $4.7 million, respectively. For the three months
ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023, there was $0.7A million and $0.7A million of capitalized interest on the construction of manufacturing sites, respectively.For the six months ended JuneA 30,
2024 and 2023, depreciation expense was $8.6 million and $10.0 million, respectively. For the six months ended ]uneA 30, 2024 and 2023, there was $1.4A million and $2.1A million of
capitalized interest on the construction of manufacturing sites, respectively.At JuneA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, total fixed assets, net, includes manufacturing process equipment and
leasehold improvements located in Europe in the amount of $32.5 million and $36. 8A million, respectively. As of JuneA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, the Company had asset retirement
obligations of $4.0A million and $4.3A million, respectively, included in accrued expenses and other liabilities on its condensed consolidated balance sheets, for costs associated with returning
leased spaces to their original condition upon the termination of certain of its lease agreements.NOTE 6a4€”LEASESThe Company leases all of its facilities, including its EXPAREL and ioveraA®
handpiece manufacturing facility at its Science Center Campus in San Diego, California. The Company also has two embedded leases with Thermo Fisher Scientific Pharma Services for the use
of their manufacturing facility in Swindon, England for the production of EXPAREL and ZILRETTA. A portion of the associated monthly base fees has been allocated to the lease components
based on a relative fair value basis.Since July 2022 and February 2023, the Company has been recognizing sublease income for laboratory space leased in Woburn, Massachusetts and a portion
of office space leased in Burlington, Massachusetts, respectively, from leases that were Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 14Table of Contentsassumed as part of the Flexion
Acquisition. In February 2024, the lease and sublease term concluded for the laboratory space in Woburn, Massachusetts.The operating lease costs for the facilities include lease and non-lease
components, such as common area maintenance and other common operating expenses, along with executory costs such as insurance and real estate taxes. Total operating lease expense, net is
as follows (in thousands):Three Months EndedSix Months EndedJune 30,June 30,2024202320242023Fixed lease costs$3,460A $3,631A $6,957A $7,259A Variable lease

costs289A 378A 783A 945A Sublease income(61)(169)(192)(322)Total$3,688A $3,840A $7,548A $7,882A Supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases is as follows (in
thousands):Six Months EndedJune 30,20242023Cash paid for operating lease liabilities, net of lease incentives$6,429A $7,325A The Company has elected to net the amortization of the right-of-
use asset and the reduction of the lease liability principal in other liabilities in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.The Company has measured its operating lease liabilities at
an estimated discount rate at which it could borrow on a collateralized basis over the remaining term for each operating lease. The weighted average remaining lease terms and the weighted
average discount rates are summarized as follows:June 30,20242023Weighted average remaining lease term5.58 years6.39 yearsWeighted average discount rate7.00A %7.03A %Maturities of
the Companya€™s operating lease liabilities are as follows (in thousands):YearAggregate MinimumPayments Due2024 (remaining six

months)$6,516A 202512,788A 202612,823A 202712,587A 202810,924A Thereafter16,426A A A A Total future lease payments72,064A A A A Less: imputed interest(12,769)A A A Total operating
lease liabilities$59,295A NOTE 74€”GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETSGoodwillThe Companya€™s goodwill results from the acquisition of Pacira Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the Companya€™
California operating subsidiary) from SkyePharma Holding, Inc. (now Vectura Group Limited, a subsidiary of Philip Morris International, Inc.) in 2007, the MyoScience Acquisition in 2019 and
the Flexion Acquisition in 2021. The goodwill balance at each of JuneA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023 was $163.2A million.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 15Table of
ContentsIntangible AssetsIntangible assets, net, consists of the in-process research and development, or IPR&D, and developed technology from the Flexion Acquisition and developed
technology and customer relationships from the MyoScience Acquisition and are summarized as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):June 30, 2024Gross Carrying ValueAccumulated

yearsA A A A A Total finite-] lived intangible assets net590,090A (170,342)419,748A Acquired IPR&D34,866A 4€”A 34,866A A A A A A Total intangible assets,

net$624, 956A $(170,342)$454, 614A December 31, 2023Gross Carrying ValueAccumulated AmortizationIntangible Assets, NetWelghted Average Useful LivesDeveloped

net590,090A (141 698)4438, 392A Acqulred IPR&D34, 866A a€”A 34,866A A A A A A Total intangible assets, net$624, 956A $(141, 698 )$483,258A Amortlzatlon expense on lntanglble assets was
$14.3A million for both the three months ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023. Amortization expense on intangible assets was $28.6A million for both the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 and
2023.Assuming no changes in the gross carrying amount of these intangible assets, the future estimated amortization expense on the finite-lived intangible assets will be $28.6A million for the
remaining six months of 2024, $57.3A million each year from 2025 to 2030, $37.4A million in 2031, $7.9A million in 2032 and $2.2A million in 2033.NOTEA 8a€”DEBTThe carrying value of the
Companya€™s outstanding debt is summarized as follows (in thousands):June 30,December 31,20242023Term loan A facility maturing March 2028$109,751A $115,202A 2.125% Convertible
senior notes due May 2029278,394A a4€”A 0.750% Convertible senior notes due August 2025201,155A 398,594A 3.375% Convertible senior notes due May 2024

(1)a€”A 8,641A A A A A A Total$589,300A $522,437A (1) The 3.375% convertible senior notes due May 2024 matured and were repaid on May 1, 2024.2028 Term Loan A FacilityOn March 31,
2023, the Company entered into a credit agreement (as amended to date, the &€eTLA Credit Agreementa€) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and certain lenders, to
refinance the indebtedness outstanding under the Companya€™s then-existing TLB Credit Agreement (as defined and discussed below). The term loan issued under the TLA Credit Agreement
(the 4€ceTLA Term Loana€) was issued at a 0.30% discount and provides for a single-advance term loan A facility in the principal amount of $150.0A million, which is secured by substantially all
of the Companya€™s and any subsidiary guarantora€™s assets. Subject to certain conditions, the Company may, at any time, on one or more occasion, add one or more new classes of term
facilities and/or increase the principal amount of the loans of any existing class by requesting one or more incremental term facilities. The net proceeds of the TLA Term Loan were
approximately $149.6A million after deducting an original issue discount of $0.4A million.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 16Table of ContentsOn May 8, 2024, the
Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and certain lenders entered into a first amendment (the &€ceFirst TLA Amendmenta€) to the TLA Credit Agreement. The First
TLA Amendment, among other things, (i) permits the Companyé€ ™s $150.0A million share repurchase program and (ii) this offering, including the Capped Call Transac}ions as despribed

2028 and the TLA Credit Agreement requires quarterly repayments of pr1n01pal in the amount of $2.8A million which commenced on June 30 2023, increasing to $3.8A million commencmg
March 31, 2025, with a remaining balloon payment of approximately $85.3A million due at maturity. Due to voluntary principal prepayments made, the Company is not required to make further
principal payments until June 2026, although the Company retains the option to do so.The TLA Credit Agreement requires the Company to, among other things, maintain (i) a Senior Secured
Net Leverage Ratio (as defined in the TLA Credit Agreement), determined as of the last day of each fiscal quarter, of no greater than 3.00 to 1.00 and (ii) a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as
defined in the Credit Agreement), determined as of the last day of each fiscal quarter, of no less than 1.50 to 1.00. The TLA Credit Agreement requires the Company to maintain an unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents balance of at least $300.0A million ($500.0A million less a $200.0A million prepayment in the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024) less any additional prepayments of the
2025 Notes (as defined below) at any time from 91 days prior to the maturity date through the earlier of (i) the latest maturity date of the 2025 Notes and (ii) the date on which there is no
outstanding principal amount of the 2025 Notes. The TLA Credit Agreement also contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, financial covenants, representations and warranties,
events of default and other provisions. As of JuneA 30, 2024, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants under the TLA Credit Agreement.The Company may elect to borrow
either (i) alternate base rate borrowings or (ii) term benchmark borrowings or daily simple SOFR (as defined in the TLA Credit Agreement) borrowings. Each term loan borrowing that is an
alternate base rate borrowing bears interest at a rate per annum equal to (i) the Alternate Base Rate (as defined in the TLA Credit Agreement), plus (ii) a spread based on the Companya€™s
Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio ranging from 2.00% to 2.75%. Each term loan borrowing that is a term benchmark borrowing or daily simple SOFR borrowing bears interest at a rate per
annum equal to (i) the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate or Adjusted Daily Simple SOFR (as each is defined in the Credit Agreement), plus (ii) a spread based on the Companya€™s Senior Secured Net
Leverage Ratio ranging from 3.00% to 3.75%. During the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, the Company made $5.6A million voluntary principal prepayments. During the year ended December
31, 2023, the Company made a scheduled principal payment of $2.8A million as well as $30.6A million of voluntary principal prepayments. As of JuneA 30, 2024, borrowings under the TLA Term
Loan consisted entirely of term benchmark borrowings at a rate of 8.43%. 2026 Term Loan B FacilityIn December 2021, the Company entered into a term loan credit agreement (the 4€ceTLB
Credit Agreementa€) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and the initial lender. The term loan issued under the TLB Credit Agreement (the &€ceTLB Term Loana€) was
issued at a 3.00% discount and allowed for a single-advance term loan B facility in the principal amount of $375.0A million, which was secured by substantially all of the Companya€™s and each
subsidiary guarantora€™s assets. The net proceeds of the TLB Term Loan were approximately $363.8A million after deducting an original issue discount of $11.2A million.On March 31, 2023,
the Company used the $149.6A million of net borrowings under the TLA Credit Agreement and cash on hand to repay the $296.9A million then-outstanding principal under the TLB Credit
Agreement and concurrently terminated the TLB Credit Agreement, which resulted in a $16.9A million loss on early extinguishment of debt. The Company incurred a prepayment fee of 2.00% of
the outstanding principal balance of the TLB Term Loan in connection with the termination. Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 17Table of ContentsConvertible Senior Notes
Due 2029In May 2024, the Company completed a private placement of $287.5A million in aggregate principal amount of its 2.125% convertible senior notes due 2029, or 2029 Notes, and
entered into an indenture with Computershare Corporate Trust, N.A., or 2029 Indenture, with respect to the 2029 Notes. The 2029 Notes accrue interest at a fixed rate of 2.125% per year,
payable semiannually in arrears on May 15th and November 15th of each year. The 2029 Notes mature on May 15, 2029.The total debt composition of the 2029 Notes is as follows (in
thousands):June 30,20242.125% convertible senior notes due May 2029$287,500A Deferred financing costs(9, 106)A A A A A Total debt, net of deferred financing costs$278,394A Holders may
convert the 2029 Notes prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding November 15, 2028, only if certain circumstances are met, including, but not limited to, if
during the previous calendar quarter, the last reported sales price of the Companya€™s common stock was greater than 130% of the conversion price then applicable for at least 20 out of the
last 30 consecutive trading days of the quarter. During the quarter endedA JuneA 30, 2024, the conditions for conversion were not met.On or after November 15, 2028, until the close of
business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding May 15, 2029, holders may convert their 2029 Notes at any time.Upon conversion, holders will receive the principal
amount of their 2029 Notes and any excess conversion value, calculated based on the per share volume-weighted average price for each of the 50 consecutive trading days during the
observation period (as more fully described in the 2029 Indenture). For the principal, the Company will settle in cash per the terms of the 2029 Notes. For any excess conversion value, holders
may receive cash, shares of the Companya€™s common stock or a combination of cash and shares of the Company&€™s common stock, at the Companya€™s option. The initial conversion rate
for the 2029 Notes is 25.2752 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of $39.56 per share of the Companya€™s common stock.
The conversion rate will be subject to adjustment in some events but will not be adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. The initial conversion price of the 2029 Notes represents a
premium of approximately 32.5% to the closing sale price of $29.86 per share of the Companya€™s common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on May 9, 2024, the date that the
Company priced the private offering of the 2029 Notes.As of JuneA 30, 2024, the 2029 Notes had a market price of $996 per $1,000 principal amount. In the event of conversion, holders would
forgo all future interest payments, any unpaid accrued interest and the possibility of further stock price appreciation. Upon the receipt of conversion requests, the settlement of the 2029 Notes
will be paid pursuant to the terms of the 2029 Indenture. In the event that all of the 2029 Notes are converted, the Company would be required to repay the $287.5A million in principal value in
cash, whereas any conversion premium would be required to be repaid in any combination of cash and shares of its common stock (at the Companya€™s option).Prior to the close of business on
the business day immediately preceding November 15, 2028, the 2029 Notes are convertible only under the following circumstances: (1) during any calendar quarter commencing after the
calendar quarter ending on June 30, 2024 (and only during such calendar quarter), if the last reported sale price of the Common Stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive)
during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is equal to or greater than 130% of the conversion price on each
applicable trading day; (2) during the five business-day period after any five consecutive trading-day period (the &€cemeasurement perioda€) in which the trading price per $1,000 principal
amount of the 2029 Notes for each trading day of the measurement period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the Companya€™s common stock and the
conversion rate on each such trading day; (3) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events; or (4) upon a Company redemption. On or after November 15, 2028, until the close of business
on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding May 15, 2029, holders of the 2029 Notes may convert all or a portion of their 2029 Notes, at any time. Upon conversion, the 2029
Notes will be settled by paying or delivering, as applicable, cash or a combination of cash and shares of the Companya€™s common stock, based on the applicable conversion rate. No sinking
fund is provided for the 2029 Notes. On or after May 17, 2027 and on or before the 50th scheduled trading day immediately before the maturity date, the Company may redeem for cash all or
part of the 2029 Notes if (i) the 2029 Notes are d€cefreely tradablea€ (as defined in the 2029 Indenture) and any accrued and unpaid additional interest has been paid as of the date the
Company sends the related notice of the redemption and (ii) the last reported sales price of the Companya€™s common stock exceeds 130% of the conversion price then Pacira BioSciences, Inc.
| Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 18Table of Contentsin effect for (1) each of at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during any 30 consecutive trading days ending on, and including,
the trading day immediately before the date the Company sends the related notice of the redemption; and (2) the trading day immediately before the date the Company sends such notice. The
redemption price of each 2029 Note to be redeemed will be the principal amount of such 2029 Note, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. In addition, calling any 2029 Notes for redemption
will constitute a make-whole fundamental change, in which case the conversion rate applicable to those 2029 Notes, if converted in connection with the redemption, will be increased in certain
circumstances. Upon the occurrence of a &€ cemake-whole fundamental changea€ (as defined in the 2029 Indenture), subject to a limited exception for certain cash mergers, holders may require
the Company to repurchase all or a portion of their 2029 Notes for cash at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2029 Notes to be repurchased plus any accrued and unpaid
interest.While the 2029 Notes are currently classified on the Companya€™s condensed consolidated balance sheet at JuneA 30, 2024 as long-term debt, the future convertibility and resulting
balance sheet classification of this liability is monitored at each quarterly reporting date and is analyzed dependent upon market prices of the Companya€™s common stock during the
prescribed measurement periods. In the event that the holders of the 2029 Notes have the election to convert the 2029 Notes at any time during the prescribed measurement period, the 2029
Notes would then be considered a current obligation and classified as such.On May 9, 2024, in connection with the pricing of the 2029 Notes, and on May 10, 2024, in connection with the
exercise in full by the initial purchasers of the 2029 Notes (the 4€celnitial Purchasersa€) of their option to purchase additional 2029 Notes, the Company entered into privately negotiated



capped call transactions (the &€ceCapped Call Transactionsa€) with certain of the Initial Purchasers of the 2029 Notes and/or their respective affiliates and/or other financial institutions (the
4€0eOption Counterpartiesa€). The Capped Call Transactions are expected to cover, subject to anti-dilution adjustments substantially similar to those applicable to the 2029 Notes, the number
of shares of the Companya€™s common stock underlying the 2029 Notes.The Capped Call Transactions are expected to reduce the potential dilution to the Companya€™s common stock upon
any conversion of the 2029 Notes and/or offset any potential cash payments the Company is required to make in excess of the principal amount of converted 2029 Notes, as the case may be,
upon any conversion of the 2029 Notes, with such reduction and/or offset subject to a cap. The cap price of the Capped Call Transactions will initially be approximately $53.75 per share,
representing a premium of approximately 80% over the closing price of $29.86 per share of the Companya€™s common stock on May 9, 2024, and is subject to certain adjustments under the
terms of the Capped Call Transactions. The capped call was recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital at its cost of $26.7A million. The Capped Call Transactions are separate
transactions entered into by the Company with the Option Counterparties, are not part of the terms of the 2029 Notes and will not affect any holdera€™ s rights under the 2029 Notes. Holders
of the 2029 Notes will not have any rights with respect to the Capped Call Transactions.Convertible Senior Notes Due 2025In July 2020, the Company completed a private placement of
$402.5A million in aggregate principal amount of its 0.750% convertible senior notes due 2025, or 2025 Notes, and entered into an indenture with Computershare Corporate Trust, N.A.
(formerly Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.), or 2025 Indenture, with respect to the 2025 Notes. The 2025 Notes accrue interest at a fixed rate of 0.750% per year, payable semiannually in arrears on
February 1st and August 1st of each year. The 2025 Notes mature on August 1, 2025.In May 2024, the Company used part of the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2029 Notes to
repurchase $200.0A million aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Notes in privately negotiated transactions at a discount for $191.4A million in cash (including accrued interest). The partial
repurchase of the 2025 Notes resulted in a $7.5A million gain on early extinguishment of debt.The total debt composition of the 2025 Notes is as follows (in thousands):June 30,December
31,202420230.750% convertible senior notes due August 2025$202,500A $402,500A Deferred financing costs(1,345)(3,906)A A A A A Total debt, net of deferred financing

costs$201,155A $398,594A Holders may convert the 2025 Notes at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding February 3, 2025, only if certain
circumstances are met, including, but not limited to, if during the previous calendar quarter, the last reported sales price of the Companya€™s common stock was greater than 130% of the
conversion price then applicable for at least 20 out of the last 30 consecutive trading days of the quarter. During the quarter endedA JuneA 30, 2024, the conditions for conversion were not
met.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 19Table of ContentsOn or after February 3, 2025, until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately
preceding August 1, 2025, holders may convert their 2025 Notes at any time.Upon conversion, holders will receive the principal amount of their 2025 Notes and any excess conversion value,
calculated based on the per share volume-weighted average price for each of the 40 consecutive trading days during the observation period (as more fully described in the 2025 Indenture). For
both the principal and excess conversion value, holders may receive cash, shares of the Companya€™s common stock or a combination of cash and shares of the Companya€ ™s common stock,
at the Companya€™s option. The initial conversion rate for the 2025 Notes is 13.9324 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of
$71.78 per share of the Companya€™s common stock. The conversion rate will be subject to adjustment in some events but will not be adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. The initial
conversion price of the 2025 Notes represents a premium of approximately 32.5% to the closing sale price of $54.17 per share of the Companya€™s common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select
Market on July 7, 2020, the date that the Company priced the private offering of the 2025 Notes.As of JuneA 30, 2024, the 2025 Notes had a market price of $938 per $1,000 principal amount.
In the event of conversion, holders would forgo all future interest payments, any unpaid accrued interest and the possibility of further stock price appreciation. Upon the receipt of conversion
requests, the settlement of the 2025 Notes will be paid pursuant to the terms of the 2025 Indenture. In the event that all of the 2025 Notes are converted, the Company would be required to
repay the remaining $202.5A million in principal value and any conversion premium in any combination of cash and shares of its common stock (at the Companya€ ™s option).Since August 1,
2023 (but, in the case of a redemption of less than all of the outstanding 2025 Notes, no later than the 40th scheduled trading day immediately before the maturity date), the Company may
redeem for cash all or part of the 2025 Notes if the last reported sale price (as defined in the 2025 Indenture) of the Companya€™s common stock has been at least 130% of the conversion price
then in effect for (i) each of at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during any 30 consecutive trading days ending on, and including, the trading day immediately before the date
the Company sends the related notice of redemption and (ii) the trading day immediately before the date the Company sends such notice. The redemption price will equal the sum of (i) 100% of
the principal amount of the 2025 Notes being redeemed, plus (ii) accrued and unpaid interest, including additional interest, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date. In addition, calling the
2025 Notes for redemption will constitute a &€cemake-whole fundamental changea€ (as defined in the 2025 Indenture) and will, in certain circumstances, increase the conversion rate applicable
to the conversion of such notes if it is converted in connection with the redemption. No sinking fund is provided for the 2025 Notes.While the 2025 Notes are currently classified on the
Company&€™s condensed consolidated balance sheet at JuneA 30, 2024 as long-term debt, the future convertibility and resulting balance sheet classification of this liability is monitored at each
quarterly reporting date and is analyzed dependent upon market prices of the Companya€™s common stock during the prescribed measurement periods. In the event that the holders of the
2025 Notes have the election to convert the 2025 Notes at any time during the prescribed measurement period, the 2025 Notes would then be considered a current obligation and classified as
such.Convertible Senior Notes Due 2024 Assumed from the Flexion AcquisitionPrior to the Flexion Acquisition, in May 2017, Flexion issued an aggregate of $201.3A million principal amount of
3.375% convertible senior notes due 2024 (the d€ceFlexion 2024 Notesa€), pursuant to the indenture, dated as of May 2, 2017 (the 4€ceOriginal Flexion Indentured€), between Flexion and
Computershare Corporate Trust, N.A. (formerly Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.), as trustee (the a€ceFlexion Trusteea€), as supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November
19, 2021, between Flexion and the Flexion Trustee (the &€ceFirst Supplemental Flexion Indenturea€ and, together with the Original Flexion Indenture, the 4€ceFlexion Indenturea€). The
Flexion 2024 Notes had a maturity date of May 1, 2024, were unsecured, and accrued interest at a rate of 3.375% per annum, payable semi-annually on May 1st and November 1st of each year.
Upon the Flexion Acquisition, the principal was assumed and recorded at fair value by the Company. On January 7, 2022, following the expiration of the offer to purchase, the Company accepted
the $192.6A million aggregate principal amount of Flexion 2024 Notes that were validly tendered (and not validly withdrawn). No Flexion 2024 Notes were converted in connection with the
Notice. The remaining principal of $8.6A million was repaid at maturity on May 1, 2024. Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 20Table of ContentsInterest ExpenseThe following
table sets forth the total interest expense recognized in the periods presented (dollar amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,Six Months Endedjune
30,2024202320242023Contractual interest expense$3,797A $3,849A $7,108A $13,199A Amortization of debt issuance costs763A 691A 1,444A 1,628A Amortization of debt

discount23A 28A 47A 703A Capitalized interest (Note 5)(699)(703)(1,399)(2,076)A A AA A A A A Total$3,884A $3,865A $7,200A $13,454A Effective interest rate on total

debt2.99A %3.16A %2.98A %4.38A %NOTE 9a€”FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSFair Value MeasurementsFair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or be paid to
transfer a liability in the principal or most advantageous market in an orderly transaction. To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, the FASB established a three-
level hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of fair value
measurements are:a€¢Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for assets or liabilities. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
priority to Level 1 inputs.a€¢Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets, but corroborated by market data.a€¢Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are used
when little or no market data is available. The fair value hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.The carrying value of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their respective fair values due to the short-term nature of these items. The fair value of the Companya€™s convertible senior notes and
its TLA Term Loan are calculated utilizing market quotations from an over-the-counter trading market for these notes (Level 2). The fair value of the Companya€™s acquisition-related
contingent consideration is reported at fair value on a recurring basis (Level 3). The carrying amounts of equity investments and convertible notes receivable without readily determinable fair
values have not been adjusted for either an impairment or upward or downward adjustments based on observable transactions. Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 21Table of
ContentsAt JuneA 30, 2024, the carrying values and fair values of the following financial assets and liabilities were as follows (in thousands):Carrying ValueFair Value Measurements UsingLevel
1Level 2Level 3Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis:Financial Assets: Equity investments$15, 877A $4€”A $4€”A $15,877A Convertible notes

receivable$11,995A $a€”A $a€”A $11,995A Financial Liabilities:A A A \ Acquisition- -related contingent consideration$22, 401A $a€”A $a€”A $22 401A Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortized
Cost:Term loan A facility due March 2028$109 751A $a€”A $110, 383A $4€”A A A A 2.125% convertible senior notes due 2029 (1)$278,394A $4€”A $286,422A $4€”A A A A 0.750% convertible
senior notes due 2025 (2)$201,155A $4€”A $189,971A $a€”A (1) The closing price of the Companya€™s common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market was $28.61 per share on
June 28, 2024, the last trading day of the quarter ended JuneA 30, 2024, compared to a conversion price of $39.56 per share. At JuneA 30, 2024, as the conversion price was above the stock
price, the requirements for conversion have not been met. (2) The closing price of the Companya€™s common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market was $28.61 per share on
June 28, 2024, the last trading day of the quarter ended JuneA 30, 2024, compared to a conversion price of $71.78 per share. At JuneA 30, 2024, as the conversion price was above the stock
price, the requirements for conversion have not been met. The maximum conversion on the principal that could have been due on the 2025 Notes is 2.8A million shares of the Companya€™s
common stock, which assumes no increase in the conversion rate for certain corporate events.Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring BasisEquity and
Convertible Note InvestmentsThe Company holds strategic investments in clinical and preclinical stage privately-held biotechnology companies in the form of equity and convertible note
investments. The following investments have no readily determinable fair value and are recorded at cost minus impairment, if any, plus or minus observable price changes of identical or similar
investments (in thousands):Equity InvestmentsConvertible Notes ReceivableTotalBalance at DecemberA 31,

2022$15,877A $5,315A $21,192A A A A Purchasesa€”A 6,758A 6,758A A A A Foreign currency adjustmentsa€”A 61A 61A Balance at DecemberA 31,

202315,877A 12,134A 28,011AAA A Foreign currency adjustmentsa€"A (139)(139)Balance at JuneA 30, 2024$15,877A $11,995A $27,872A Acquisition-Related Contingent ConsiderationThe
Company has recognized contingent consideration related to the Flexion Acquisition in the amount of $22.4A million and $24.7A million as of JuneA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023,
respectively. The Companya€™s contingent consideration obligations are recorded at their estimated fair values and are revalued each reporting period if and until the related contingencies are
resolved. The Company has measured the fair value of its contingent consideration using a probability-weighted discounted cash flow approach that is based on unobservable inputs and a
Monte Carlo simulation. These inputs include, as applicable, estimated probabilities and the timing of achieving specified commercial and regulatory milestones, estimated forecasts of revenue
and costs and the discount rates used to calculate the present value of estimated future payments. Significant changes may increase or decrease the probabilities of achieving the related
commercial and regulatory events, shorten or lengthen the time required to achieve such events, or increase or decrease estimated forecasts. Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q |
Page 22Table of ContentsIn November 2021, the Company completed the Flexion Acquisition, which provided for contingent consideration related to contingent value rights that were issued to
Flexion shareholders and certain equity award holders which could aggregate up to a total of $372.3A million if certain regulatory and commercial milestones are met. The aggregate amount
was initially $425.5A million prior to the Companya€™s September 2022 decision to formally discontinue further development of Flexiona€™s product candidate, PCRX-301. The Companya€™s
obligation to make milestone payments is limited to those milestones achieved through December 31, 2030, and are to be paid within 60 days of the end of the fiscal quarter of achievement.
During the three months ended JuneA 30, 2024, the Company recognized a contingent consideration charge of $1.5A million primarily due to revisions to the latest discount rates. During the six
months ended JuneA 30, 2024, the Company recognized a contingent consideration gain of $2.3A million primarily due to an adjustment reflecting the probability of achieving the remaining
Flexion regulatory milestone by the milestone expiration date. During the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023, the Company recognized gains of $18.3A million and $6.6A million,
respectively, due to adjustments to long-term forecasts which reduced the probability of meeting the sales-based contingent consideration milestones by December 31, 2030, the expiration date
for achieving the milestones. The gains recognized during the six months ended JuneA 30, 2023 were partially offset by a decrease in the assumed discount rate that is utilized in calculating the
liabilitya€™s present value, based on a significant improvement in the Companya€™s incremental borrowing rate resulting from the TLA Credit Agreement entered into in March 2023. These
adjustments were recorded within contingent consideration charges (gains), restructuring charges and other in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. At JuneA 30, 2024, the
weighted average discount rate was 8.5%. The following table includes the key assumptions used in the valuation of the Companya€™ s contingent consideration:AssumptionRanges Utilized as
ofJuneA 30, 2024Discount rates7.8% to 9.1%Probability of payment for remaining regulatory milestone0%The change in the Companya€™s contingent consideration recorded at fair value using
Level 3 measurements is as follows (in thousands):Contingent ConsiderationFair ValueBalance at DecemberA 31, 2022$28 122A Fair value adjustments and accretion(3,424)Balance at
DecemberA 31, 202324,698A A A A Fair value adjustments and accretion(2,297)Balance at JuneA 30, 2024$22,401A Available-for-Sale InvestmentsShort-term investments consist of asset-
backed securities collateralized by credit card receivables, investment grade commercial paper and corporate, federal agency and government bonds with maturities greater than three months,
but less than one year. Noncurrent investments consist of asset-backed securities collateralized by credit card receivables and contain maturities greater than one year but less than three years.
Net unrealized gains and losses (excluding credit losses, if any) from the Companya€™s short-term investments are reported in other comprehensive income. At JuneA 30, 2024 and
DecemberA 31, 2023, all of the Companya€™s short-term and noncurrent investments are classified as available-for-sale investments and are determined to be Level 2 instruments, with the
exception of U.S. government bonds, which are measured at fair value using standard industry models with observable inputs. The fair value of the commercial paper is measured based on a
standard industry model that uses the three-month U.S. Treasury bill rate as an observable input. The fair value of the asset-backed securities and corporate bonds is principally measured or
corroborated by trade data for identical issues in which related trading activity is not sufficiently frequent to be considered a Level 1 input or that of comparable securities. The fair value of U.S.
government bonds is based on level 1 trading activity. At the time of purchase, all available-for-sale investments had an 4€ceA4&€ or better rating by StandardA & Poora€™s.A Pacira
BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 23Table of ContentsThe following summarizes the Companya€™s short-term and noncurrent available-for-sale investments at JuneA 30, 2024 and
DecemberA 31, 2023 (in thousands): ]uneA 30, 2024 InvestmentsCostGrossUnrealizedGainsGrossUnrealizedLossesFair Value(Level 2)Current:Asset-backed

securities$37,080A $a€”A $(43)$37,037A Commercial paper95,898A 9A (91)95,816A Corporate bonds18,362A a€”A (17)18,345A U.S. federal agency

bonds5,983A a€”A (8)5,975AAAAAAAAAA A Total$157,323A $9A $(159)$157,173A DecemberA 31, 2023 InvestmentsCostGrossUnrealizedGainsGrossUnrealizedLossesFair

Value(LevelA 1)Fair Value(Level 2)Current:Asset-backed securities$9,539A $1A $a€”A $a€”A $9,540A Commercial paper77,941A 103A a€”A a€”A 78,044A U.S. federal agency

bonds22,849A &4€”A (29)a€”A 22,820A U.S. government bonds14,899A &€”A (20)14,879A a€”A Subtotal125,228A 104A (49)14,879A 110,404A Noncurrent:Asset-backed

securities2,403A 7A a€”A a€”A 2,410A Subtotal2,403A 7A a€”A a€”A 2,410AAAAAAAAAA A Total$127,631A $111A $(49)$14,879A $112,814A At JuneA 30, 2024, there were no
investments available for sale that were materially less than their amortized cost.The Company elects to recognize its interest receivable separate from its available-for-sale investments. At
JuneA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, the interest receivable from its available-for-sale investments recognized in prepaid expenses and other current assets was $0.2A million and

$0.4A million, respectively.Credit RiskFinancial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, short-term and
long-term available-for-sale investments and accounts receivable. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents with high-credit quality financial institutions. Such amounts may exceed
federally-insured limits.A As ofJuneA 30, 2024, three wholesalers each accounted for over 10% of the Companya€™s accounts receivable, at 36%, 18% and 15%. At DecemberA 31, 2023, three
wholesalers each accounted for over 10% of the Companya€™s accounts receivable, at 37%, 19% and 16%. For additional information regarding the Companya€™s wholesalers, see Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. EXPAREL and ZILRETTA revenues are primarily derived from major wholesalers and specialty distributors that generally have significant cash
resources. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers as warranted and generally does not require collateral. Allowances for credit losses on the Companya€™s
accounts receivable are maintained based on historical payment patterns, current and estimated future economic conditions, aging of accounts receivable and its write-off history. As of



JuneA 30, 2024, there were $0.2A million of allowances for credit losses on its accounts receivable associated with ioveraA®. As of DecemberA 31, 2023, the Company did not deem any
allowances for credit losses on its accounts receivable necessary.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 24Table of ContentsNOTE 104€”STOCKHOLDERS&€™
EQUITYAccumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)The following tables illustrate the changes in the balances of the Companya€™ s accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for
the periods presented (in thousands):Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) From Available-For-Sale InvestmentsUnrealized Foreign Currency TranslationAccumulated Other Comprehensive
IncomeBalance at DecemberA 31, 2023$124A $123A $247A A A A Net unrealized loss on investments, net of tax(1)(160)a€”A (160)A A A Foreign currency translation

adjustmentsaél”A 18A 18A Balance at ]uneA 30, 2024$(36)$141A $105A Net Unreallzed Loss From Available-For-Sale InvestmentsUnrealized Foreign Currency TranslationAccumulated Other
Comprehensive LossBalance at DecemberA 31, 2022$(523)$143A $(380)A A A Net unrealized gain on investments, net of tax (1)216A 4€”A 216A A A A Foreign currency translation
adjustmentsa€”A (9)(9)Balance at]uneA 30, 2023$(307)$134A $(173)(1) Net of a $0.1A million tax benefit and $0.2A million tax expense for the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. Share Repurchase ProgramOn May 7, 2024, the Company announced that its Board of Directors has approved a new share repurchase program, effective immediately, which
authorizes the Company to repurchase up to an aggregate of $150.0A million of its outstanding common stock. Repurchases under this program may be made at managementa€™s discretion on
the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. The share repurchase program may be suspended or discontinued at any time by the Company and has an expiration date of
December 31, 2026.0n May 9, 2024, concurrently with the pricing of the offering of the 2029 Notes, the Company entered into separate privately negotiated agreements with certain of the
initial purchasers of the 2029 Notes or their respective affiliates and/or certain other financial institutions to repurchase 837,240 shares of the Companya€™s common stock for a total cost of
$25.1A million, inclusive of $0.1A million of accrued excise tax. The repurchase occurred on May 10, 2024.Repurchases of the Companya€™s common stock are accounted for at cost and
recorded as treasury stock. The excise tax on repurchases of the Companya€™s common stock is recorded as a cost of acquiring treasury stock. Reissued treasury stock will be accounted for at
average cost. Gains or losses on reissued treasury stock arising from the difference between the average cost and the fair value of the award will be recorded in additional paid-in capital.Pacira
BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 25Table of ContentsNOTEA 114€”STOCK PLANSStock-Based CompensationThe Company recognized stock-based compensation expense in the
periods presented as follovys (in thﬂousandg):Three Months EndedJune 30,Six Months‘Endedjpne 30,2()24202320242023C05t of goods sold$1,259A $1,436A $2,387A $3,160A Research and
development1,925A 1,722A 3,728A 3,597A Selling, general and administrative8,848A 7,797A 16,833A 16,188A Contingent consideration charges (gains), restructuring charges and

0ther492A a€"A 2,727A 4€"AAA A AAAA A Total$12, 524A $10,955A $25, 675A $22,945A Stock-based compensation from:A A A A Stock

plan211A 244A 423A 520A A AAAA A A A Total$12,524A $10,955A $25, 675A $22, 945A Equlty AwardsThe following tables contain information about the Company&€™s stock option and
restricted stock unit, or RSU, activity for the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024:Stock OptionsA Number ofStock OptionsA Weighted Average Exercise Price (Per Share)A Outstanding at
DecemberA 31, 20237,079,748A $49.40A A A A A A Granted1,099,223A 31.46A A A A A A Forfeited(539,743)45.57A A A A A A Expired(692,325)61.76A A Outstanding at JuneA 30,
20246,946,903A 44.69A Restricted Stock UnitsA Number ofRestrictedStock UnitsA Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value (Per Share)Unvested at DecemberA 31,

20231,364,618A $47.66A A A A A A Granted1,845,665A 29.22A A A A A A Vested(429,709)49.33A A A A A A Forfeited(104,195)46.88A Unvested at JuneA 30, 20242,676,379A 34.71A Pacira
BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 26Table of ContentsThe weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 was $13.42 per share.
The fair values of stock options granted were estimated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:Black-Scholes Weighted Average
AssumptionSix Months Ended June 30, 2024Expected dividend yieldNoneRisk-free interest rate4.00%Expected volatility40.80%Expected term of options5.25 yearsEmployee Stock Purchase
PlanThe Companya€™s Amended and Restated 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP, features two six-month offering periods per year, running from January 1 to June 30 and July 1 to
December 31. Under the ESPP, employees may elect to contribute after-tax earnings to purchase shares at 85% of the closing fair market value of the Companya€™s common stock on either
the offering date or the purchase date, whichever is lesser. During the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, 56,077 shares were purchased and issued through the ESPP.NOTEA 124€”NET
INCOME PER SHAREBasic net income per common share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common shares by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per common share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common shares by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding plus dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period.Potential common shares include the shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock
options, the vesting of RSUs and the purchase of shares from the ESPP (using the treasury stock method), if applicable. Potential common shares associated with convertible senior notes are
treated under the if-converted method. Adjustments are made to the diluted net income per common share calculation as if the Company had converted the convertible senior notes on the first
day of each period presented. Adjustments to the numerator are made to add back the interest expense associated with the convertible senior notes on a post-tax basis. Adjustments to the
denominator reflect the number of shares assumed to be convertible at the beginning of the period.Potential common shares are excluded from the diluted net income per common share
computation to the extent they would be antidilutive. Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 27Table of ContentsThe following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted
net income per common share for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands, except per share amounts):Three Months EndedJune 30,Six Months Endedjune
30,2024202320242023Numerator:A A A Net income &4€”basic$18,886A $25,763A $27,865A $6,227A 2025 Notes if-converted method adjustment762A 1,029A 1,790A 4€”A A A A Adjusted net
income a€”diluted$19,648A $26,792A $29,655A $6,227A Denominator:A A A Welghted average common shares 0utstand1nga€"basm46 174A 46,088A 46,337A 46,019A Computation of diluted
securities:2025 Notes if-converted method adjustment4,122A 5,607A 4,865A 4€”A A A A Dilutive effect of stock optionsa€”A 108A 4€”A 92A A A A Dilutive effect of

RSUs239A 244A 162A 170A Dilutive effect of ESPP purchase options4A 7A 2A 4A A A A Weighted average common shares outstandinga€”diluted50,539A 52,054A 51,366A 46,285A Net income
per share:A A A Basic net income per common share$0.41A $0.56A $0.60A $0.14A A A A Diluted net income per common share$0.39A $0.51A $0.58A $0.13A The following table summarizes the
outstanding stock options, RSUs, ESPP purchase options and convertible senior notes that were excluded from the diluted net income per common share calculation because the effects of
including these potential shares were antidilutive in the periods presented (in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,Six Months EndedJune 30,2024202320242023Weighted average number
of stock options7,311A 5,404A 7,486A 5,403A 2025 Notes (1)4€”A a€”A 4€”A 5,607A Weighted average number of RSUs1,304A 701A 1,267A 759A Weighted average ESPP purchase
optionsa€”A &4€”A 26A a€”AAAA A A A'Total8,615A 6,105A 8,779A 11,769A (1) For the six months ended June 30, 2023, the diluted earnings per share calculation excluded 5.6A million
potential common shares assuming conversion of the 2025 Notes, as well as the related $1.0A million of interest expense, net of tax, because these adjustments would have been
antidilutive.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 28Table of ContentsNOTE 13a€”INCOME TAXESIncome before income taxes and income tax expense are as follows (dollar
amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,Six Months EndedJune 30,2024202320242023Income (loss) before income

taxes:A A A Domestlc$36 996A $40,189A $50,653A $12,416A A A A _Foreign(412)(2,335)(429)(1, 036)Total income before income taxes$36,584A $37,854A $50,224A $11,380A Income tax
expense$17,698A $12,091A $22,359A $5,153A Effective tax rate48A %32A %45A %45A %The Companya€™s income tax expense represents the estimated annual effective tax rate applied to
the year-to-date domestic operating results adjusted for certain discrete tax items.The Companya€™s effective tax rate for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 include costs related
to non-deductible stock-based compensation, primarily related to expired stock options, and non-deductible executive compensation, partially offset by tax credits. The Companya€™s effective
tax rate for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023 includes costs related to non-deductible stock-based compensation, a valuation allowance recorded against non-U.S. results and non-
deductible executive compensation.As of JuneA 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company has an income tax payable balance of $1.0A million that is included in other liabilities within the
condensed consolidated balance sheets.NOTEA 144€”CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION CHARGES (GAINS), RESTRUCTURING CHARGES AND OTHERContingent consideration charges
(gains), restructuring charges and other for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023 summarized below (in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,Six Months EndedJune
30,2024202320242023Flexion contingent considerationl,509A (18,258)$(2,297)$(6,640)Restructuring chargesQQGA 936A 6,531A 936A Acquisition-related

expenses230A 709A 404A 1,198A Total contingent consideration charges (gains), restructuring charges and other$2,735A $(16,613)$4,638A $(4,506)Flexion Acquisition Contingent
ConsiderationThe Company recognized $1.5A million of charges and $2.3A million of gains related to contingent consideration during the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024,
respectively. The Company recognized $18.3A million and $6.6A million of contingent consideration gains during the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023, respectively. See Note 9,
Financial Instruments, for information regarding the method and key assumptions used in the fair value measurements of contingent consideration and more information regarding the changes
in fair value.Restructuring ChargesIn February 2024, the Company initiated a restructuring plan to ensure it is well positioned for long-term growth. The restructuring plan includes: (i)
reshaping the Companya€™s executive team, (ii) reallocating efforts and resources from the Companya€™s ex-U.S. and certain early-stage development programs to its commercial portfolio in
the U.S. market and (iii) reprioritizing investments to focus on commercial readiness for the implementation of separate Medicare reimbursement for EXPAREL at average sales price plus 6
percent in outpatient settings beginning in January 2025 as part of the Non-Opioids Prevent Addiction In the Nation (4€ceNOPAIN&€) Act and broader commercial initiatives in key areas, such
as strategic national accounts, marketing and market access and reimbursement. The Company recognized $1.0A million and $6.5A million of Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q |
Page 29Table of Contentsrestructuring charges for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, respectively, related to employee termination benefits, such as the acceleration of share-
based compensation, severance, and, to a lesser extent, other employment-related termination costs, as well as contract termination costs. The Companya€™s restructuring charges as of
JuneA 30, 2024, including the beginning and ending liability balances, are summarized below (in thousands):Employee Termination Benefits (1)Contract Termination CostsTotalBalance at
December 31, 2023$4€”A $4€”A $a€”A Charges incurred2,892A 912A 3,804A Cash payments made / settled(1,129)(20)(1,149)Balances at June 30, 2024$1,763A $892A $2,655A (1) During the
three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, there was $0.5 million and $2.7 million, respectively, of employee termination benefits related to share-based compensation excluded from the table
above as they are non-cash and recorded against additional paid-in capital.In June 2023, the Company implemented a restructuring plan in an effort to improve its operational efficiencies. The
restructuring charges are predominantly related to one-time employee termination benefits through a reduction of headcount, such as severance and related costs. During the three and six
months ended JuneA 30, 2023, the Company recognized $0.9A million of restructuring charges.Acquisition-Related ExpensesThe Company recognized acquisition-related expenses of

$0.2A million and $0.4A million during the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, respectively. The Company recognized acquisition-related expenses of $0.7A million and $1.2A million
during the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023, respectively. These costs primarily related to vacant and underutilized Flexion leases that were assumed from the Flexion
Acquisition.NOTEA 15a€”COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESFrom time to time, the Company has been and may again become involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course
of its business, including those related to its patents and intellectual property, product liability and government investigations. Except as described below, the Company is not presently a party
to any legal proceedings that it believes to be material, and is not aware of any pending or threatened litigation against the Company which it believes could have a material adverse effect on its
business, operating results, financial condition or cash flows.MyoScience Milestone LitigationIn August 2020, the Company and its subsidiary, Pacira CryoTech, Inc. (4€cePacira CryoTecha€),
filed a lawsuit in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware against Fortis Advisors LLC (a€ceFortisa€), solely in its capacity as representative for the former securityholders of MyoScience,
and certain other defendants, seeking declaratory judgment with respect to certain terms of the merger agreement for the MyoScience Acquisition (the &€ceMyoScience Merger Agreementa€),
specifically related to the achievement of certain milestone payments under the MyoScience Merger Agreement. In addition, the Company and Pacira CryoTech sought general, special and
compensatory damages against the other defendants related to breach of fiduciary duties in connection with the purported achievement of milestone payments under the MyoScience Merger
Agreement, and breach of the MyoScience Merger Agreement and certain other agreements with the defendants. In October 2020, Fortis filed an answer and counterclaim against the Company
and Pacira CryoTech seeking to recover certain milestone payments under the MyoScience Merger Agreement. The total remaining value of these milestones is $30.0A million, plus
attorneysa€™ fees. A trial was conducted in September 2023, and a decision is expected in the coming weeks. The Company is unable to predict the outcome of this action at this time.eVenus
Pharmaceutical Laboratories LitigationsIn October 2021, the Company received a Notice Letter advising that eVenus Pharmaceutical Laboratories, Inc., or eVenus, of Princeton, New Jersey,
submitted to the United States Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, an Abbreviated New Drug Application, or ANDA with a Paragraph IV certification seeking authorization for the
manufacturing and marketing of a generic version of EXPAREL (266 mg/20 mL) in the U.S. prior to the expiration of U.S. Patent No. 11,033,495 (the 4€7495 patent).In November 2021, the
Company filed a patent infringement suit against eVenus and its parent company in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey (21-cv-19829) asserting infringement of the a€7495
patent. This triggered an Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 30Table of Contentsautomatic 30-month stay of final approval of the eVenus ANDA which expired on July 1, 2024.
On January 6, 2022, eVenus filed an Answer with counterclaims to the Complaint, alleging the 4€7495 patent is invalid and/or not infringed through the manufacture, sale, or offer for sale of the
product described in eVenusa€™s ANDA submission.In December 2021, the Company received a second Notice Letter advising that eVenus submitted to the FDA an amendment to its ANDA
with a Paragraph IV Certification seeking authorization for the manufacturing and marketing of a generic version of EXPAREL (133 mg/10 mL) in the U.S. prior to the expiration of the 4€7495
patent. In the second Notice Letter, eVenus also advised that it submitted a Paragraph IV Certification to the FDA seeking authorization for the manufacturing and marketing of a generic
version of EXPAREL (266 mg/20 mL and 133 mg/10 mL) in the U.S. prior to the expiration of U.S. Patent No. 11,179,336 (the &€~336 patent). eVenus further alleges in the Notice Letter that
both the 4€7495 patent and the a€”336 patent are invalid and/or not infringed.In February 2022, the Company filed a second patent infringement suit against eVenus and its parent company in
the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey (22-cv-00718) asserting that the 133 mg/10 mL ANDA product will infringe the &€7495 and &€~336 patents and that the 266 mg/20 mL
ANDA product will infringe the 4€7336 patent. This filing triggered a second automatic 30-month stay of final approval for the 133 mg/10 mL ANDA product which expired on July 1, 2024. The
first and second patent infringement suits were consolidated.In February 2023, eVenus filed its first amended answer to the first amended complaint, alleging patent invalidity, non-infringement
and inequitable conduct. The Company has denied the allegations in eVenusa€™s first amended answer. The Company has subsequently voluntarily dismissed its claims with respect to the
4€7336 Patent. The trial on the remaining claim was conducted in February 2024 with a decision expected in the coming days.In April 2023, the Company filed a third patent infringement suit
against eVenus, its parent company, and Fresenius Kabi USA, LLC, or Fresenius, in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey (23-cv-2367) asserting that the 133 mg/10 mL and 266
mg/20 mL ANDA products will infringe U.S. Patent No. 11,426,348 (the 4€7348 patent). In July 2023, eVenus filed its answer with claims for declaratory judgment, alleging patent invalidity,
non-infringement and inequitable conduct with respect to the 4€~348 patent as well as the Companya€™s other patents, U.S. Patent Nos. 11,278,494; 11,304,904; 11,311,486; 11,357,727 and
11,452,691. The parties have subsequently dismissed all patents other than the 4€~348 patent from this litigation. This action is in the discovery stage.In May 2024, the Company filed a fourth
patent infringement suit against eVenus, its parent company and Fresenius in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey (24-cv-6294) asserting that the 133 mg/10 mL and 266 mg/20
mL ANDA products will infringe U.S. Patent Nos. 11,819,574 and 11,819,575. This action is in the pleadings stage.In July 2024, the Company filed a fifth patent infringement suit against
eVenus, its parent company and Fresenius in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey (24-cv-7680) asserting that the 133 mg/10 mL and 266 mg/20 mL ANDA products will infringe
U.S. Patent No. 11,925,706. This action is in the pleadings stage.The Company is unable to predict the outcome of these litigations at this time.Research Development FoundationPursuant to an
agreement with the Research Development Foundation, or RDF, the Company was required to pay RDF a low single-digit royalty on the collection of revenues from certain products, for as long
as certain patents assigned to the Company under the agreement remain valid. RDF has the right to terminate the agreement for an uncured material breach by the Company, in connection
with its bankruptcy or insolvency or if it directly or indirectly opposes or disputes the validity of the assigned patent rights. The Companya€™s a€"495 patent was issued on June 15, 2021.
Thereafter, RDF asserted that the issuance of that patent extends the Companya€™s royalty obligations under the agreement until 2041. The Company believes that the royalty period under the



agreement ended on December 24, 2021 with the expiration of its U.S. Patent No. 9,585,838. Because of the disagreement over the interpretation of the agreement, in December 2021, the
Company filed a declaratory judgment lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Nevada (21-cv-02241). The lawsuit seeks a declaration from the court that the Company owes no
royalties to RDF with respect to its EXPAREL product after December 24, 2021.0n August 8, 2023, the U.S. District Court, District of Nevada, granted the Companya€™ s motion for partial
summary judgment in respect to the Companya€™s claim for a declaration that it no longer owes royalties for EXPAREL made under the 45-liter manufacturing process as of December 24,
2021. As a result, the Company expects to receive $14.5A million from RDF, representing the royalties that the Company paid to RDF under protest after December 24, 2021 for EXPAREL made
from the 45-liter manufacturing process. Once it becomes probable that the settlement amount will be received, the Company will record a settlement gain within other operating income
(expense), net in the condensed consolidated statement of operations. In November 2023, the U.S. District Court, District of Nevada conducted a mediation that did not result in a settlement.
During Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 31Table of Contentsthe pendency of the remaining lawsuit, the Company will continue to pay royalties associated with the 200-liter
EXPAREL manufacturing process to RDF under protest. A trial is currently scheduled for September 2024. The Company is unable to predict the outcome of this action at this time.Other
Commitments and ContingenciesPediatric Trial CommitmentsThe FDA, as a condition of EXPAREL approval, has required the Company to study EXPAREL for infiltration and as a brachial
plexus block in pediatric patients. The Company was granted deferrals for the required pediatric trials until after the indications were approved in adults. Similarly, in Europe, the Company
agreed with the European Medicines Agency, or EMA, on a Pediatric Investigation Plan as a prerequisite for submitting a Marketing Authorization Application (MAA) in the E.U. Despite the
U.K.a€™s withdrawal from the E.U., the agreed pediatric plan is applicable in the U.K.The Company received notification from the FDA in October 2023 that its pediatric studies requirement
had been waived for the indication of brachial plexus interscalene nerve block to produce postsurgical regional analgesia in pediatric patients. The Company is still working with the FDA, EMA
and Medicines and Healthcare Regulatory Agency (MHRA) to finalize the regulatory pathways for its remaining pediatric commitments.Contingent Milestone PaymentsRefer to Note 9, Financial
Instruments, for information on potential contingent milestone payments related to the Flexion Acquisition.PCRX-201PCRX-201, a novel, intra-articular gene therapy product candidate that
produces the anti-inflammatory protein interleukin-1 receptor antagonist (IL-1Ra) treating OA pain in the knee, was added to the Companya€™s portfolio as part of the Flexion Acquisition in
November 2021. Prior to the Flexion Acquisition, in February 2017, Flexion entered into an agreement with GQ Bio Therapeutics GmbH to acquire the global rights to PCRX-201, a gene therapy
product candidate. As part of the agreement, up to an aggregate of $56.0A million of payments could become due upon the achievement of certain development and regulatory milestones,
including up to $4.5A million through initiation of a Phase 2 proof of concept clinical trial and, following successful proof of concept, up to an additional $51.5A million in development and
global regulatory approval milestone payments.In February 2024, the FDA granted a Regenerative Medicine Advanced Therapy (RMAT) designation to PCRX-201 for the treatment of OA pain of
the knee. NOTEA 164€”SUBSEQUENT EVENTIn July 2024, eVenus received FDA approval of a generic version of EXPARELA€”the Companya€ ™ s bupivacaine liposome injectable suspension
product. This generic version of EXPAREL is part of multiple ongoing and pending patent infringement litigations, with a decision on the first case expected in the coming days.Refer to Note 15,
Commitments and Contingencies, for information on the related legal proceedings.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 32Table of ContentsitemA 2. MANAGEMENTA€™ S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONSManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is
based upon our condensed consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP)
and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC.This Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q and certain other communications
made by us contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the &€ceExchange Acta€), and the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including, without limitation, statements related to: our growth and future operating results and trends, our strategy, plans, objectives, expectations (financial or
otherwise) and intentions, future financial results and growth potential, including our plans with respect to the repayment of our indebtedness, anticipated product portfolio, development
programs, patent terms, development of products, strategic alliances and intellectual property, plans with respect to the Non-Opioids Prevent Addiction in the Nation (4€ceNOPAINA&€) Act and
any other statements that are not historical facts. For this purpose, any statement that is not a statement of historical fact should be considered a forward-looking statement. We often use the
words a€ceanticipate,a€ a€cebelieve,a€ d€cecan,a€ a€mcould,a€ d€mestimate,a€ d€eexpect,a€ d€ceintend,4€ 4€cemay,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€ceproject,a€ a€ceshould,a€ a€cewill, 4€ a€ewoulda€ and
similar expressions to help identify forward-looking statements. We cannot assure you that our estimates, assumptions and expectations will prove to have been correct. Actual results may differ
materially from these indicated by such forward-looking statements as a result of various important factors, including risks relating to, among others: the integration of our new chief executive
officer; risks associated with acquisitions, such as the risk that the businesses will not be integrated successfully, that such integration may be more difficult, time-consuming or costly than
expected or that the expected benefits of the transaction will not occur; our manufacturing and supply chain, global and United States, or U.S., economic conditions (including inflation and
rising interest rates), and our business, including our revenues, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations; the success of our sales and manufacturing efforts in support of the
commercialization of EXPARELA® (bupivacaine liposome injectable suspension), ZILRETTAA® (triamcinolone acetonide extended-release injectable suspension) and ioveraA°A®; the rate and
degree of market acceptance of EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA®; the size and growth of the potential markets for EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA° and our ability to serve those markets;
our plans to expand the use of EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA® to additional indications and opportunities, and the timing and success of any related clinical trials for EXPAREL, ZILRETTA
and ioveraA®; the commercial success of EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA®; the related timing and success of United States Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, supplemental New Drug
Applications, or sNDAs, and premarket notification 510(k)s; the related timing and success of European Medicines Agency, or EMA, Marketing Authorization Applications, or MAAs; our plans to
evaluate, develop and pursue additional product candidates utilizing our proprietary multivesicular liposome, or pMVL, drug delivery technology; the approval of the commercialization of our
products in other jurisdictions; clinical trials in support of an existing or potential pMVL-based product; our commercialization and marketing capabilities; our ability to successfully complete
capital projects; the outcome of any litigation; the ability to successfully integrate any future acquisitions into our existing business; the recoverability of our deferred tax assets; assumptions
associated with contingent consideration payments; and the anticipated funding or benefits of our share repurchase program.Important factors could cause our actual results to differ materially
from those indicated or implied by forward-looking statements, and as such we anticipate that subsequent events and developments will cause our views to change. Except as required by
applicable law, we undertake no intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, and readers
should not rely on the forward-looking statements as representing our views as of any date subsequent to the date of the filing of this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q.These forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from those
expressed or implied by these statements. These factors include items mentioned herein and the matters discussed and referenced in PartA I-ltemA 1A. 4€ceRisk Factorsa€ included in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the 4€022023 Annual Reporta€) and in other reports as filed with the SEC.Unless the context requires otherwise, references
to &€cePacira,a€ the &€ceCompany,a€ a€ceour,a€ 4€ceusa€ and a€cewed€ in this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q refer to Pacira BioSciences,A Inc. and its subsidiaries.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. |
Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 33Table of ContentsOverviewPacira is the therapeutic area leader in non-opioid pain management with a stated corporate mission of providing non-opioid pain
management options to as many patients as possible and redefining the role of opioids for rescue therapy only. Our long-acting, local analgesic EXPARELA® (bupivacaine liposome injectable
suspension) utilizes our unique pMVL drug delivery technology that encapsulates drugs without altering their molecular structure and releases them over a desired period of time. In the U.S.,
EXPAREL is a long-acting, non-opioid option proven to manage postsurgical pain. EXPAREL is the only product indicated for local analgesia via infiltration in patients aged six years and older
and regional analgesia via interscalene brachial plexus nerve block, sciatic nerve block in the popliteal fossa and adductor canal block in adults. In Europe, EXPAREL is approved as a brachial
plexus block or femoral nerve block for treatment of post-operative pain in adults, and as a field block for treatment of somatic post-operative pain from small- to medium-sized surgical wounds
in adults and children aged six years and older. Since its initial approval in 2011, more than 14A million patients have been treated with EXPAREL. We drop-ship EXPAREL directly to end-users
based on orders placed to wholesalers or directly to us, and there is no product held by wholesalers. With the acquisition of Flexion Therapeutics, Inc., or Flexion, in November 2021 (the
a€eFlexion Acquisitiona€), we acquired ZILRETTAA® (triamcinolone acetonide extended-release injectable suspension), the first and only extended-release, intra-articular, or IA, therapy that
can provide major relief for osteoarthritis, or OA, knee pain for three months and has the potential to become an alternative to hyaluronic acid, platelet rich plasma injections or other early
intervention treatments. With the acquisition of MyoScience, Inc., or MyoScience, in April 2019 (the &€ceMyoScience Acquisitiona€), we acquired ioveraA°A®, a handheld cryoanalgesia device
used to deliver a precise, controlled application of cold temperature to targeted nerves, which we sell directly to end users. EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA° are highly complementary
products as long-acting, non-opioid therapies that alleviate pain.We expect to continue to pursue the expanded use of EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA°® in additional procedures; progress our
earlier-stage product candidate pipeline; advance regulatory activities for EXPAREL, ZILRETTA, ioveraA°, PCRX-201 and our other product candidates; invest in sales and marketing resources
for EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA°; expand and enhance our manufacturing capacity for EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA°; invest in products, businesses and technologies; and support
legal matters.Global Economic ConditionsDirect and indirect effects of global economic conditions have in the past, and may continue to, negatively impact our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Such impacts may include the effect of prolonged periods of inflation which could, among other things, result in higher costs for labor, raw materials and services; cause
patients to defer or cancel medical procedures, thereby adversely impacting our revenues; and negatively impact our suppliers which could result in longer lead-times or the inability to secure a
sufficient supply of materials. The current macroeconomic environment remains dynamic and subject to rapid and possibly material changes. Additional negative impacts may also arise that we
are unable to foresee. The nature and extent of such impacts will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.Recent Highlightsa€¢In May 2024, we
completed a private placement of $287.5 million in aggregate principal amount of 2.125% convertible senior notes due 2029, or 2029 Notes. We used part of the net proceeds from the issuance
of the 2029 Notes to repurchase $200.0 million in aggregate principal amount of our 0.750% convertible senior notes due 2025, or 2025 Notes, in privately-negotiated transactions at a discount
for $191.4A million in cash (including accrued interest). The partial repurchase of the 2025 Notes resulted in a $1.5A million proportional reduction of deferred financing costs and a

$7.5A million gain on early extinguishment of debt. For more information, see Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein and a€ceLiquidity and Capital
Resourcesa€ below.a€¢In May 2024, we announced a new share repurchase program which authorizes us to repurchase up to an aggregate of $150 million of our outstanding common stock.
Repurchases under the program may be made at managementa€™s discretion on the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. The share repurchase program may be
suspended or discontinued at any time by us and has an expiration date of December 31, 2026. Concurrently with the pricing of the offering of the 2029 Notes, we entered into separate
privately negotiated agreements with certain of the initial purchasers of the 2029 Notes or their respective affiliates and/or certain other financial institutions to repurchase 837,240 shares of
our common stock for $25.0A million.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 34Table of Contentsa€¢In July 2024, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, issued
its proposed Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment System and Ambulatory Surgical Center Payment System rule for 2025. In the proposed rule, EXPAREL is one of six covered non-
opioidsa€”two of which are specific to ophthalmologya€” qualifying for separate Medicare reimbursement in both the ambulatory surgical center, or ASC, and hospital outpatient, or HOPD,
settings, where EXPAREL will be reimbursed at 106% of the average sales price (also called 4€0eASP + 6% reimbursementa€). Pending finalization, this policy would go into effect beginning
January 1, 2025. The proposed rule reflects impending implementation of the NOPAIN Act, which mandates separate CMS payment for qualifying non-opioid drugs and devices across HOPD
and ASC settings. The law was passed as part of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2023.EXPARELIn the U.S., EXPAREL is currently indicated for local analgesia via infiltration in patients
aged six years and older and regional analgesia via interscalene brachial plexus nerve block, sciatic nerve block in the popliteal fossa, and adductor canal block in adults. Safety and efficacy
have not been established in other nerve blocks. In Europe, EXPAREL is approved as a brachial plexus block or femoral nerve block for treatment of post-operative pain in adults, and as a field
block for treatment of somatic post-operative pain from small- to medium-sized surgical wounds in adults and children aged six years and older.EXPAREL Label Expansiond€¢Expanding
utilization in lower extremity nerve block indications. In February 2024, we launched EXPAREL in two key lower extremity nerve blocksa€”namely an adductor canal block and a sciatic nerve
block in the popliteal fossa. We believe these two key nerve blocks will expand EXPAREL utilization within surgeries of the knee, lower leg, and foot and ankle procedures. The launch is
supported by two successful head-to-head Phase 3 studies in which EXPAREL demonstrated four days of superiority to bupivacaine.a€¢Pediatrics. We have launched a Phase 1 pharmacokinetic
study of EXPAREL as a single-dose post-surgical infiltration administration in patients under six years of age. If successful, we expect this study, followed by a Phase 3 registration study, will
support expansion of the EXPAREL labels in the U.S., European Union, or E.U., and United Kingdom, or U.K. We are also discussing with the FDA, EMA and Medicines and Healthcare Products
Regulatory Agency (MHRA) our regulatory strategy for EXPAREL administered as a nerve block in the pediatric setting. We received notification from the FDA in October 2023 that our
pediatric studies requirement had been waived for the indication of brachial plexus interscalene nerve block to produce postsurgical regional analgesia in pediatric patients.a€¢Stellate ganglion
block. Planning is underway for a multicenter EXPAREL Phase 3 registration program as a stellate ganglion block for preventing postoperative atrial fibrillation after cardiothoracic surgery. We
worked with a steering committee of Key Opinion Leaders, or KOLs, in regional anesthesia and stellate ganglion blocks to design our program and we are awaiting FDA feedback on study
design. We believe a stellate ganglion block utilizing EXPAREL will be critical in an unmet need with post-operative atrial fibrillation, or POAF. POAF is a common and costly complication after
cardiothoracic surgery, occurring after up to 40% of cardiac procedures and 20% of thoracic procedures, and often results in an extended intensive care unit and/or hospital stay, as well as
higher long-term risk. A stellate ganglion block is a sympathetic nerve block which can stabilize the heart. Since POAF typically occurs around the third day after surgery, a long-acting block
with EXPAREL provided at the time of surgery may enhance current prophylactic measures.Additionally, we initiated a second Phase 1 study of EXPAREL for intrathecal analgesia in June
2023.EXPAREL Clinical BenefitsWe believe EXPAREL can replace the use of bupivacaine delivered via elastomeric pumps as the foundation of a multimodal regimen for long-acting postsurgical
pain management. Based on our clinical data, EXPAREL:&€¢provides long-lasting local or regional analgesia;a€¢is a ready-to-use formulation;a€¢expands easily with saline or lactated

Ringera€™ s solution to reach a desired volume;a€¢can be administered for local analgesia via infiltration and for regional analgesia via field block, as well as brachial plexus nerve block, sciatic
nerve block in the popliteal fossa and adductor canal block; anda€¢facilitates treatment of a variety of surgical sites.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 35Table of ContentsWe
believe EXPAREL is a key component of long-acting postsurgical pain management regimens that reduce the need for opioids. Based on the clinical data from our PhaseA 3 and Phase 4 clinical
studies as well as data from retrospective health outcomes studies, EXPAREL significantly reduces opioid usage while improving postsurgical pain management.ZILRETTAZILRETTA is the first
and only extended-release, intra-articular therapy for OA knee pain. ZILRETTA employs a proprietary microsphere technology combining triamcinolone acetonide, or TA, a commonly
administered, immediate-release corticosteroid, with a poly lactic-co-glycolic acid, or PLGA, matrix to provide extended pain relief. PLGA is a proven extended-release delivery vehicle that is
metabolized to carbon dioxide and water as it releases drug in the intra-articular space and is used in other approved drug products and surgical devices. The ZILRETTA microspheres slowly
and continuously release triamcinolone acetonide into the knee to provide significant pain relief for 12 weeks, with some people experiencing pain relief through 16 weeks. ZILRETTA was
approved by the FDA in October 2017 and launched in the U.S. shortly thereafter.We believe ZILRETTA&€™s extended-release profile may also provide effective treatment for OA pain of the
shoulder and we recently launched a Phase 3 registration study to evaluate the safety and efficacy of ZILRETTA for the management of OA pain of the shoulder. If the study is successful, we
plan to seek approval to expand the ZILRETTA label to include OA pain of the shoulder.ZILRETTA Clinical BenefitsZILRETTA combines TA, a commonly administered steroid, with a proprietary,
extended-release microsphere technology to administer extended therapeutic concentrations in the joint and persistent analgesic effect.Based on the strength of its pivotal and other clinical
trials, we believe that ZILRETTA represents an important treatment option for the millions of patients in the U.S. in need of safe and effective extended relief from OA knee pain. The pivotal
Phase 3 trial showed that ZILRETTA significantly reduced OA knee pain for 12 weeks, with some people experiencing pain relief through 16 weeks. We believe that ZILRETTA has the potential



to become the corticosteroid of choice given its safety and efficacy profile, and the fact that it is the first and only extended-release corticosteroid on the market. In September 2021, the
American Association of Orthopaedic Surgeons, or AAOS, updated its evidence-based clinical practice guidelines, finding ZILRETTA can improve patient outcomes over traditional immediate-
release corticosteroids.ioveraA°The ioveraA® system is a non-opioid handheld cryoanalgesia device used to deliver precise, controlled doses of cold temperature to targeted nerves. It is FDA
510(k) cleared in the U.S., has a CE mark in the E.U. and is cleared for marketing in Canada for the blocking of pain. We believe the ioveraA°® system is highly complementary to EXPAREL and
ZILRETTA as a non- 0p101d therapy that alleviates pain using a non-pharmacological nerve block to disrupt pain signals being transmitted to the brain from the site of injury or surgery. It is also
indicated for the relief of pain and symptoms associated with arthritis of the knee for up to 90 days.ioveraA® Clinical BenefitsThere is a growing body of clinical data demonstrating success with
ioveraA® treatment for a wide range of chronic pain conditions. Some of our strongest data relates directly to the improvement of OA pain of the knee. In a pivotal trial evaluating ioveraA° for
knee OA pain, the majority of the patients suffering from OA pain of the knee experienced pain relief up to 150 days after being treated with ioveraA°.Surgical intervention is typically a last
resort for patients suffering from knee OA pain. Treatment with ioveraA°® has also demonstrated effectiveness for managing pain associated with knee replacements. Specifically, findings
demonstrated reductions in opioids, including:a€¢The daily morphine equivalent consumption in the per protocol group analysis was significantly lower at 72 hours (p<0.05), 6 weeks (p<0.05)
and 12 weeks (p<0.05).a€¢Patients who were administered ioveraA°® were far less likely to take opioids six weeks after surgery. The number of patients taking opioids six weeks after total knee
arthroplasty, or TKA, in the control group was three times the number of patients taking opioids in the cryoanalgesia group (14 percent vs. 44 percent, p<0.01).Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2
2024 Form 10-Q | Page 36Table of Contentsa€¢Patients in the ioveraA°® group demonstrated a statistically significant reduction in pain scores from their baseline pain scores at 72 hours
(p<0.05) and at 12 weeks (p<0.05).We believe these data validate ioveraA°® as a clinically meaningful non-opioid alternative for patients with knee OA as well as those undergoing TKA, and that
ioveraA® offers the opportunity to provide patients with non-opioid pain control well in advance of any necessary surgical intervention through a number of key product attributes: :4€¢ioveraA°® is
safe and effective with immediate pain relief that can last for months as the nerve regenerates over time; a€c¢ioveraA® is repeatable, with no diminishing effectiveness over time and repeat
use;a€¢The ioveraA°® technology does not risk damage to the surrounding tissue;a€¢ioveraA°® is a convenient handheld device with a single-use procedure-specific Smart Tip; anda€¢ioveraA®

can be delivered precisely using imaging guidance or an anatomical landmark.A study published in 2021 that included 267 patients undergoing TKA (169 who underwent cryoneurolysis with
ioveraA® compared to 98 patients who did not receive ioveraA° treatment) showed that patients who were treated with ioveraA° had 51% lower daily morphine milligram equivalents during
their hospital stay and a 22% lower mean pain score versus those who were not. In addition, the ioveraA® group had greater function at discharge, a shorter length of hospital stay and received
significantly fewer opioids, including discharge prescriptions at week 2 and week 6 after surgery.In September 2021, the AAOS updated its evidence-based clinical practice guidelines, reporting
that denervation therapya€”including cryoneurolysisa€”may reduce knee pain and improve function in patients with symptomatic OA of the knee.We are currently sponsoring a prospective,
real-world registry called the Innovations in Genicular Outcomes Registry, or iGOR, which is a patient focused registry governed in collaboration with a steering committee of scientific experts
that evaluates clinical, economic- and health-related patient-reported outcomes in patients who have received any treatment for knee OA pain, including TKA, for a minimum of 18 months. A
unique feature of iGOR is that if patients receive additional treatments for OA, data capture resets so outcomes of their treatment journey can be followed over multiple years. Unlike in clinical
studies, treatment decisions in iGOR are decided by physicians and patients in a shared decision-making manner rather than being driven by treatment assignment, so that outcomes are truly
those from real-world applications. The iGOR registry is tracking outcomes of ioveraA°, ZILRETTA and EXPAREL, as well as comparator treatments. Early outcomes from iGOR have shown that
patients who receive ioveraA® prior to TKA have less pain, improved function and improved sleep for six months after surgery versus patients who do not receive ioveraA°.In addition, a pilot
randomized control trial evaluating ioveraA® for the treatment of lower back pain showed that it had significantly greater improvements in pain and disability, and required fewer injections over
a year, compared to patients who were treated with radiofrequency ablation. This data supports the development of a longer Smart Tip that is currently underway which would allow for broader
use of ioveraA® for the treatment of lower back pain.Beyond treatment for pain, observational data has been presented at multiple congresses showing effectiveness of ioveraA° for the
treatment of upper limb spasticity over 90 days by targeting motor nerves. We currently have a pivotal trial underway to demonstrate the efficacy and safety of ioveraA® for treating
spasticity.The Osteoarthritis MarketOA is the most common form of arthritis. It is also called degenerative joint disease and occurs most frequently in the hands, hips and knees. With OA, the
cartilage within a joint begins to break down and the underlying bone begins to change. These changes usually develop slowly and worsen over time. OA can cause pain, stiffness and swelling.
In some cases, it also causes reduced function and disabilityd€”some people are no longer able to do daily tasks or work. According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), OA
affects over 32.5 million adults in the U.S.The lifetime risk of developing symptomatic knee OA is 45 percent according to the Arthritis Foundation. The prevalence of symptomatic knee OA
increases with each decade of life, with the annual incidence of knee OA being highest between age 55 and 64 years old. There are 14 million individuals in the U.S. who have symptomatic knee
OA, and nearly two million are under the age of 45. Surgical intervention is typically a last resort for patients suffering from OA of the knee.With ZILRETTA, we now offer clinicians the flexibility
to individualize OA knee pain treatment with either ZILRETTA or a drug-free nerve block with ioveraA® based on patient factors and preference, physician training, site of care and
reimbursement considerations.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 37Table of ContentsClinical Development ProgramsPCRX-201PCRX-201 is a novel, helper-dependent
adenoviral vector expressing interleukin-1 receptor antagonist (IL-1Ra). After injection, the vector enters joint cells and turns them into factories to produce sustained therapeutic levels of IL-
1Ra and inhibit the IL-1 pathway to manage pain and mitigate OA-related joint damage while remaining localized to the joint space. In a Phase 1 proof-of-concept study of patients with
moderate to severe OA of the knee, PCRX-201 was well tolerated with improvements in knee pain observed across all doses. The study enrolled 72 patients in two three-dose cohorts: a co-
administered IA steroid cohort and a cohort that did not receive a steroid. PCRX-201 was well tolerated, with efficacy observed through at least 52 weeks at all doses and cohorts. The highest
level of efficacy was achieved in the co-administered steroid group, which showed a greater percentage of patients with at least a 50% improvement in Western Ontario and McMaster
Universities Osteoarthritis Index (WOMAC) pain and stiffness scores, as well as a meaningful improvement in (Knee Injury and Osteoarthritis Outcomes Score) KOOS functional assessment. The
one-year data were presented at the Osteoarthritis Research Society International (OARSI) 2024 World Congress in April 2024. We now have two-year efficacy and safety data that we have
submitted for presentation at a medical meeting later this year. Given the highly encouraging Phase 1 data, we are preparing to launch a second clinical study in knee OA.In February 2024, the
FDA granted PCRX-201 a Regenerative Medicine Advanced Therapy, or RMAT, designation. Established under the 21st Century Cures Act, RMAT designation is a dedicated program designed
to expedite the development and review processes for promising therapies, including genetic therapies, that are intended to treat, modify, reverse or cure a serious or life-threatening disease or
condition, and for which preliminary clinical evidence indicates that the drug or therapy has the potential to address an unmet medical need. PCRX-201 is the first gene therapy product
candidate to receive RMAT designation for OA.External InnovationIn parallel to our internal clinical programs, we are pursuing innovative acquisition targets that are complementary to
EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA® and are of great interest to the surgical and anesthesia audiences we are already calling on today. We are using a combination of strategic investments, in-
licensing and acquisition transactions to buildout a pipeline of innovation to improve patientsa€™ journeys along the neural pain pathway. The strategic investments we have made to support
promising early-stage platforms are summarized below:CompanyDevelopment StageDescription of Platform TechnologyPotential Therapeutic AreasCarthroniX, Inc.Phase 1-ReadyCX-011, a
small molecule modulator of gp130 formulated as an IA injection designed to slow joint degeneration by mediating IL-6 cytokinesKnee OAGenascence CorporationPhase 1bAdeno-associated
virus (AAV) based gene therapy engineered to deliver Interleukin-1 Receptor Antagonist (IL-1Ra) to target cells in joint(s)Knee OAGQ Bio Therapeutics GmbHPreclinicalHigh-capacity
adenovirus (HCAd) based gene therapy engineered to deliver DNA to target cells in joint(s) and intervertebral disc(s)Knee OA and degenerative disc disease (DDD)Spine BioPharma, LLCPhase
3SB-01, a 7-amino acid chain peptide that binds to and induces down regulation of transforming growth factor, beta 1 (TGFi21)Degenerative disc disease (DDD)Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2
2024 Form 10-Q | Page 38Table of ContentsProduct Portfolio and Internal PipelineOur current product portfolio and internal product candidate pipeline, along with anticipated milestones over
the next 12 to 18 months, are summarized in the table below:Pacira Training FacilitiesWe maintain and operate two Pacira Innovation and Training, or PIT, facilitiesa€”one in Tampa, Florida
and one in Houston, Texas. These sites were constructed with a singular goal in mind: to advance education on best practice techniques to effectively manage acute pain while reducing or
eliminating the need for opioids. These facilities provide clinicians with flexible, state-of-the-art environments for interactive, hands-on instruction on the latest and most innovative local,
regional and field block approaches for managing pain, improving patient care and enabling patient migration to the 23-hour stay environment. Each of our PIT facilities feature distinct training
spaces, including simulation labs equipped with ultrasound scanning stations; lecture halls that feature liquid crystal display video walls to support live, virtual and global presentations; and
green-screen broadcast studios to livestream content with single or multiple hosts. The PIT of Houston has both wet and dry lab space for cadaver and other interactive workshops. The PIT of
Tampa also houses our principal executive offices and corporate headquarters.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 39Table of ContentsResults of OperationsComparison of the
Three and Six Months Ended JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023 RevenuesNet product sales consist of sales of (i) EXPAREL in the U.S., E.U., and U.K.; (ii) ZILRETTA in the U.S.; (iii) ioveraA°® in the U.S.,
Canada and Europe and (iv) sales of our bupivacaine liposome injectable suspension for veterinary use. Royalty revenues are related to a collaborative licensing agreement from the sale of our
bupivacaine liposome injectable suspension for veterinary use.The following table provides information regarding our revenues during the periods indicated, including percent changes (dollar
amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)Six Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)2024202320242023Net product

sales:EXPAREL$136,852A $135,127A 1%$269,282A $265,535A 1%ZILRETTA30,707A 29,261A 5%56,546A 53,595A 6%ioveraA°5,674A 4,384A 29%10,704A 8,385A 28%Bupivacaine liposome
injectable suspension3,154A 695A 100% +5,679A 1,383A 100% +Total net product sales176,387A 169,467A 4%342,211A 328,898A 4%Royalty revenuel,636A 4€”A N/A2,929A 910A 100%
+Total revenues$178,023A $169,467A 5%$345,140A $329,808A 5%EXPAREL revenue increased 1% in both the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023. Components of the
increase included a 3% increase in gross vial volume in both the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, which was offset by a shift in vial mix. EXPAREL revenue was also
impacted by a 1% increase in selling price per unit in both the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, related to a January 2024 price increase, net of increases in sales related
allowances as a result of group purchasing organization contracting. ZILRETTA revenue increased 5% and 6% in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, primarily due to a
3% and 5% increase in net selling price per unit related to a January 2024 price increase and a 3% and 1% increase in kit volume, respectively.Net product sales of ioveraA°® increased 29% and
28% in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively, primarily due to increases of 29% and 32% in Smart Tip volume, partially offset by increased sales related
allowances and accruals.Bupivacaine liposome injectable suspension revenue increased more than 100% in both the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023. Its related
royalties also substantially increased in both the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023 primarily due to the sales mix of vial sizes and the timing of orders placed for
veterinary use. The following tables provide a summary of activity with respect to our sales related allowances and accruals related to EXPAREL and ZILRETTA for the six months ended

JuneA 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):June 30, 2024ReturnsAllowancesPromptPaymentDiscountsServiceFeesVolumeRebates andChargebacksGovernmentRebatesTotalBalance at December
31, 2023$1,868A $1,308A $3,697A $5,870A $1,175A $13,918A Provision1,014A 6,199A 9,985A 54,533A 1,334A 73,065A Payments / Adjustments(664)(6,287)(9,850)(55,058)(715)
(72,574)Balance at June 30, 2024$2,218A $1,220A $3,832A $5,345A $1,794A $14,409A Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 40Table of Contentsjune 30,
2023ReturnsAllowancesPromptPaymentDiscountsServiceFeesVolumeRebates andChargebacksGovernmentRebatesTotalBalance at December 31,

2022$1,691A $1,187A $3,193A $5,452A $786A $12,309A Provision1,122A 5,952A 8,895A 46,936A 1,027A 63,932A Payments / Adjustments(956)(5,918)(8,677)(45,659)(982)(62,192)Balance at
June 30, 2023$1,857A $1,221A $3,411A $6,729A $831A $14,049A Total reductions of gross product sales from sales-related allowances and accruals were $73.1 million and $63.9 million, or
17.6% and 16.3% of gross product sales, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The overall 1.3% increase in sales-related allowances and accruals as a percentage of
gross product sales was primarily related to accruals as a result of higher chargeback-related allowances from expanded contracting efforts.Cost of Goods Sold Cost of goods sold primarily
relates to the costs to produce, package and deliver our products to customers. These expenses include labor, raw materials, manufacturing overhead and occupancy costs, depreciation of
facilities, royalty payments, quality control and engineering.The following table provides information regarding our cost of goods sold and gross margin during the periods indicated, including
percent changes (dollar amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)Six Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)2024202320242023A Cost of goods
sold$44,262$48,207(8)%$91,678$97,227(6)%A Gross margin75A %72A %73A %71A %Gross margin increased three and two percentage-points in the three and six months ended June 30, 2024
versus 2023, respectively, primarily due to lower EXPAREL product cost and lower royalty expense as discussed below, partially offset by higher inventory reserves.On August 8, 2023, the U.S.
District Court, District of Nevada, concluded we were no longer obligated to pay royalties to the Research and Development Foundation for EXPAREL made under the 45-liter manufacturing
process. For more information, see Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein.Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses primarily consist of costs related to clinical trials and related outside services, product development and other research and development costs, including
trials that we are conducting to generate new data for EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA® and stock-based compensation expense. Clinical and preclinical development expenses include costs
for clinical personnel, clinical trials performed by third-parties, toxicology studies, materials and supplies, database management and other third-party fees. Product development and
manufacturing capacity expansion expenses include development costs for our products, which include personnel, research equipment, materials and contractor costs for process development
and product candidates, development costs related to significant scale-ups of our manufacturing capacity and facility costs for our research space. Regulatory and other expenses include
regulatory activities related to unapproved products and indications, medical information expenses, expenses related to our iGOR registry study and related personnel. Stock-based
compensation expense relates to the costs of stock option grants, awards of restricted stock units, or RSUs, and our employee stock purchase plan, or ESPP.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024
Form 10-Q | Page 41Table of ContentsThe following table provides a breakout of our research and development expenses during the periods indicated, including percent changes (dollar
amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)Six Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)2024202320242023Clinical and preclinical
development$8,172$5,19457%$14,518$10,45539%Product development and manufacturing capacity expansion7,3189,305(21)%14,71316,977(13)%Regulatory and
other2,9232,60312%5,6174,93514%Stock-based compensation1,9251,72212%3,7283,5974%Total research and development expense$20,338$18,8248%$38,576$35,9647%A % of total
revenues11A %11A %11A %11A %Total research and development expense increased 8% and 7% in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively.Clinical and
preclinical development expense increased 57% and 39% in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively, due to the start-up of and enrollment in a ZILRETTA
shoulder trial, an EXPAREL intrathecal trial and an EXPAREL pediatric trial, and start-up activities in an ioveraA° spasticity trial. These increases were partially offset by the winding down of a
PCRX-201 Phase 1 trial for knee OA as two-year follow-up visits of subjects were completed in November 2023. This Phase 1 trial remains on track for completion by November 2026, the last
year of the follow-up period for the last patient dosed. In addition, toxicology studies for product candidates were completed in 2023.Product development and manufacturing capacity expansion
expense decreased 21% and 13% in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively, primarily attributable to the near-completion of pre-commercial scale-up activities
of our EXPAREL manufacturing capacity at our Science Center Campus in San Diego, California, subsequently placed into service in July 2024. The FDA approved an sNDA for our 200-liter
EXPAREL manufacturing suite in February 2024. This decrease is partially offset by ongoing product development costs related to PCRX-201 and an ioveraA°® medial branch Smart
Tip.Regulatory and other expense increased 12% and 14% in the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively, due to increased enrollment and additional sites related to
an observational registry study which tracks patientsa€™ symptoms and experience with pain management related to OA of the knee.Stock-based compensation increased 12% and 4% in the
three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively, primarily due to greater equity awards granted to personnel.Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSales and
marketing expenses primarily consist of compensation and benefits for our sales force and personnel that support our sales, marketing, medical and scientific affairs operations, expenses



related to communicating the health outcome benefits of our products, investments in provider-level market access and patient reimbursement support and educational programs for our
customers. General and administrative expenses consist of compensation and benefits for legal, finance, regulatory activities related to approved products and indications, compliance,
information technology, human resources, business development, executive management and other supporting personnel. It also includes professional fees for legal, audit, tax and consulting
services. Stock-based compensation expense relates to the costs of stock option grants, RSU awards and our ESPP.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 42Table of ContentsThe
following table provides information regarding our selling, general and administrative expenses during the periods indicated, including percent changes (dollar amounts in thousands):Three
Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)Six Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)2024202320242023Sales and marketing$39,047$37,4624%$78,482$79,041(1)%General and
administrative20,23119,5913%44,83740,46411%Stock-based compensation8,8487,79713%16,83316,1884%Total selling, general and administrative
expense$68,126$G4,8505%$140,152$135,6933%A % of total revenues38A %38A %41A %41A %Total selling, general and administrative expense increased 5% and 3% in the three and six
months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively.Sales and marketing expense increased 4% in the three months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023 and decreased 1% in the six months
ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023. The three months increase was driven by investing in programs to drive awareness and education for our customers and enhance our marketing, market
access and reimbursement teams and value creation for the implementation of separate Medicare reimbursement for EXPAREL at average sales price plus 6 percent in outpatient settings
beginning in January 2025 as part of the NOPAIN Act. We expect investments in these programs to increase in the second half of 2024 as we launch our national campaigna€”Make the NOPAIN
Pacta€”which targets hospital pharmacists, administrators, clinicians and revenue management teams and is focused on ensuring these audiences are ready for the commencement of the
NOPAIN Act. These increases were partially offset by the impact of a February 2024 restructuring program. The six months decrease was attributable to the impact of the February 2024
restructuring program.General and administrative expense increased 3% and 11% in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively. The three and six month
increases were primarily driven by third-party management consulting to assess strategic opportunities and market assessments for our products, partially offset by lower legal fees for ongoing
litigation. Incrementally, the six months increase also included compensatory costs associated with the transition to our new Chief Executive Officer effective January 2, 2024, which include
compensation related to the current Chief Executive Officer and to the former Chief Executive Officer who remains employed by the Company in an advisory role.For more information on our
ongoing litigation, see Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein. Stock-based compensation increased 13% and 4% for the
three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023, respectively, primarily due to greater equity awards granted to personnel. Amortization of Acquired Intangible AssetsThe following table
provides a summary of the amortization of acquired intangible assets during the periods indicated, including percent changes (dollar amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,%
Increase / (Decrease)Six Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)2024202320242023Amortization of acquired intangible assets$14,322A $14,322A 4€”%$28,644A $28,644A a€"%As part
of the Flexion Acquisition and the MyoScience Acquisition, we acquired intangible assets consisting of developed technology intangible assets and customer relationships, with estimated useful
lives between 9 and 14 years. For more information, see Note 7, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. |
Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 43Table of ContentsContingent Consideration Charges (Gains), Restructuring Charges and OtherThe following table provides a summary of the costs related to the
contingent consideration, acquisition-related charges and restructuring charges during the periods indicated, including percent changes (dollar amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune
30,% Increase / (Decrease)Six Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)2024202320242023F1ex10n contingent consideration$1, 509A $(18,258)N/A$(2,297)$(6, 640)(65)%Restructuring
chargesQQGA 936A 6%6,531A 936A 100% +Acquisition-related expenses230A 709A (68)%404A 1,198A (66)%Total contingent consideration charges (gains), restructuring charges and
other$2,735A $(16,613)N/A$4,638A $(4,506)N/ATotal contingent consideration charges (gains), restructuring charges and other for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 included
charges of $2.7 million and $4.6 million, respectively. Total contingent consideration charges (gains), restructuring charges and other for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023
included gains of $16.6 million and $4.5 million, respectively.During the three months ended JuneA 30, 2024, we recognized a contingent consideration charge of $1.5 million primarily due to
revisions to the latest discount rates. During the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, we recognized a contingent consideration gain of $2.3 million primarily due to an adjustment reflecting the
probability of achieving the remaining Flexion regulatory milestone by the milestone expiration date. During the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023, we recognized contingent
consideration gains of $18.3 million and $6.6 million, respectively. These gains were primarily due to adjustments to long-term forecasts which reduced the probability of meeting the sales-
based contingent consideration milestones for the Flexion Acquisition by the December 31, 2030 milestone expiration date. The gains recognized during the six months ended JuneA 30, 2023
were partially offset by a decrease in the assumed discount rate that is utilized in calculating the liabilitya€™s present value, based on a significant improvement in our incremental borrowing
rate.During the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, we recognized restructuring charges of $1.0 million and $6.5 million, respectively, related to employee termination benefits, such as
the acceleration of share-based compensation, severance, and, to a lesser extent, other employment-related termination costs, as well as contract termination costs. During the three and six
months ended JuneA 30, 2023, we implemented a restructuring plan in an effort to improve our operational efficiencies and recognized $0.9 million in one-time employee termination benefits
through a reduction of headcount. During the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023, we recognized acquisition-related expenses of $0.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively, primarily
related to severance and other employee related costs, legal and other professional fees, third-party services and other one-time charges associated with the Flexion Acquisition.For more
information, see Note 9, Financial Instruments and Note 14, Contingent Consideration Charges (Gains), Restructuring Charges and Other, to our condensed consolidated financial statements
included herein.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 44Table of ContentsOther Income (Expense), NetThe following table provides information regarding other income
(expense), net during the periods indicated, including percent changes (dollar amounts in thousands):Three Months Endedjune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)Six Months EndedJune 30,% Increase /
(Decrease)2024202320242023Interest income$4,749A $2,111A 100% +$8,652A $5,253A 65%Interest expense(3,884)(3,865)a€"%(7,200)(13,454)(46)%Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of
debt7,518A a€”A N/A7,518A (16,926)N/AOther, net(39)(269)(86)%(198)(279)(29)%Total other income (expense), net$8,344A $(2,023)N/A$8,772A $(25,406)N/ATotal other income, net was $8.3
million and $8.8 million in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, respectively. Total other expense, net was $2.0 million and $25.4 million in the three and six months ended JuneA 30,
2023, respectively.The substantial increases in interest income in the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023 were due to higher interest rates and overall investment
balances.The 46% decrease in interest expense during the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 versus 2023 was primarily driven by lower principal outstanding associated with the TLA Term Loan
(as defined below) that was entered into on March 31, 2023 which replaced our then-outstanding TLB Term Loan (as defined below) that had a higher principal balance and interest rate.In the
three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, we recognized a $7.5 million gain on early extinguishment of debt in conjunction with the repurchase of $200.0A million principal of our 2025
Notes. The partial repurchase of the 2025 Notes was completed with our net proceeds from the issuance of the 2029 Notes.In the six months ended JuneA 30, 2023, in conjunction with the
entry into the TLA Credit Agreement, we incurred a $16.9 million loss on early extinguishment of debt as a result of the retirement of $287.5A million aggregate principal of our TLB Term Loan
(as defined below). For more information, see Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein.Income Tax Expense The following table provides information
regarding our income tax expense during the periods indicated, including percent changes (dollar amounts in thousands):Three Months EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)Six Months
EndedJune 30,% Increase / (Decrease)2024202320242023A Income tax expense$17,698$12,09146%$22,359$5,153100% +A Effective tax rate 48A %32A %45A %45A %The effective tax rates
were 48% and 45% for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, respectively. The effective tax rates were 32% and 45% for the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2023, respectively.
Income tax expense represents the estimated annual effective tax rate applied to the year-to-date domestic operating results adjusted for certain discrete tax items. The effective tax rates for
the three and six months ended JuneA 30, 2024 include costs related to non-deductible stock-based compensation, primarily related to expired stock options, and non-deductible executive
compensation, partially offset by tax credits. The effective tax rates for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 includes costs related to non-deductible stock-based compensation, a
valuation allowance recorded against non-U.S. results and non-deductible executive compensation. Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 45Table of ContentsLiquidity and
Capital ResourcesSince our inception in 2006, we have devoted most of our cash resources to manufacturing, research and development and selling, general and administrative activities related
to the development and commercialization of EXPAREL. In addition, we acquired ZILRETTA as part of the Flexion Acquisition in November 2021 and ioveraA°® as part of the MyoScience
Acquisition in April 2019. We are primarily dependent on the commercial success of EXPAREL and ZILRETTA. We have financed our operations primarily with the proceeds from the sale of
convertible senior notes and other debt, common stock, product sales and collaborative licensing and milestone revenue. As of JuneA 30, 2024, we had an accumulated deficit of $78.9 million,
cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments of $404.2 million and working capital of $539.5 million.We expect that our cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale
investments on hand will be adequate to cover our short-term liquidity needs, and that we would be able to access other sources of financing should the need arise.Summary of Cash FlowsThe
following table summarizes our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the periods indicated (in thousands):Six Months EndedJune 30,Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows Data:20242023A Net cash provided by (used in):A Operating activities$102,337A $62,627A A Investing activities(30,745)73,509A A Financing

activities22,163A (153,465)Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents$93,755A $(17,329) Operating ActivitiesDuring the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, net cash provided by
operating activities was $102.3 million, compared to $62.6 million during the six months ended JuneA 30, 2023. The increaseA of $39.7 million was attributable to increased revenue with
favorable gross margins, lower interest paid and a $13.0 million payment made in the prior year for a termination fee relating to a licensing agreement.Investing ActivitiesDuring the six months
ended JuneA 30, 2024, net cash used in investing activities was $30.7 million, which reflected $26.3 million of outflows from available-for-sale investment purchases (net of sales), as well as
$4.4 million of capital expenditures for manufacturing product fill lines and for an EXPAREL capacity expansion project at our Science Center Campus in San Diego, California.During the six
months ended June 30, 2023, net cash provided by investing activities was $73.5 million, which reflected proceeds from $90.2 million of available-for-sale investment sales (net of purchases),
partially offset by purchases of fixed assets of $10.0 million for fill lines for our products and equipment for an EXPAREL capacity expansion project at our Science Center Campus in San Diego,
California and purchases of equity and debt investments of $6.8 million.Financing ActivitiesDuring the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, net cash provided by financing activities was $22.2
million, which primarily consisted of $287.5A million in proceeds from the issuance of the 2029 Notes. We used the majority of the proceeds from the 2029 Notes to make a partial repurchase of
the 2025 Notes in the amount of $191.0 million, enter into a capped call transaction for $26.7A million, repurchase $25.0 million of treasury stock, and pay debt issuance and financing costs of
$9.4 million. Additionally, we paid the remaining $8.6A million of 3.375% convertible senior notes due 2024 assumed from the Flexion Acquisition (the 4€ceFlexion 2024 Notesa€) upon their
maturity and made $5.6A million of voluntary prepayments associated with the TLA Term Loan. See Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for further
discussion on the Flexion 2024 Notes, 2025 Notes, 2029 Notes, the capped call transaction and the TLA Term Loan. There was also $1.4A million of proceeds from the issuance of common stock
through our ESPP.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 46Table of ContentsDuring the six months ended June 30, 2023, net cash used in financing activities was $153.5 million,
which consisted of a $296.9 million repayment of TLB Term Loan principal as well as a $5.8 million prepayment penalty in connection with the retirement of the TLB Term Loan facility, partially
offset by the net proceeds from the TLA Term Loan of $149.6 million and the exercise of stock options of $1.9 million and $1.7 million from the issuance of common stock through our ESPP.
Debt2028 Term Loan A FacilityOn March 31, 2023, we entered into a credit agreement (as amended to date, the &€aeTLA Credit Agreementa€) to refinance the indebtedness outstanding under
our TLB Credit Agreement (as defined and discussed below). The term loan issued under the TLA Credit Agreement (the &€eTLA Term Loan&€) was issued at a 0.30% discount and provides for
a single-advance term loan A facility in the principal amount of $150.0A million, which is secured by substantially all of our and any subsidiary guarantora€™s assets and matures on March 31,
2028. We may elect to borrow either (i) alternate base rate borrowings or (ii) term benchmark borrowings or daily simple SOFR (as defined in the TLA Credit Agreement) borrowings. Each term
loan borrowing which is an alternate base rate borrowing bears interest at a rate per annum equal to (i) the Alternate Base Rate (as defined in the TLA Credit Agreement), plus (ii) a spread
based on our Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio ranging from 2.00% to 2.75%. Each term loan borrowing which is a term benchmark borrowing or daily simple SOFR borrowing bears interest
at a rate per annum equal to (i) the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate or Adjusted Daily Simple SOFR (as each is defined in the TLA Credit Agreement), plus (ii) a spread based on our Senior Secured
Net Leverage Ratio ranging from 3.00% to 3.75%. During the six months ended JuneA 30, 2024, we made voluntary principal prepayments of $5.6A million. During the year ended December 31,
2023, the Company made a scheduled principal payment of $2.8A million as well as $30.6A million of voluntary principal prepayments. Due to voluntary principal prepayments made, we are not
required to make further principal payments until June 2026, although we retain the option to do so. As of JuneA 30, 2024, borrowings under the TLA Term Loan consisted entirely of term
benchmark borrowings at a rate of 8.43%. The TLA Credit Agreement requires us to, among other things, maintain (i) a Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Agreement),
determined as of the last day of each fiscal quarter, of no greater than 3.00 to 1.00 and (ii) a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined in the TLA Credit Agreement), determined as of the last
day of each fiscal quarter, of no less than 1.50 to 1.00. The TLA Credit Agreement requires us to maintain an unrestricted cash and cash equivalents balance of at least $500.0A million less any
prepayments of the 2025 Notes (as defined below) at any time from 91 days prior to the maturity date through the earlier of (i) the latest maturity date of the 2025 Notes and (ii) the date on
which there is no outstanding principal amount of the 2025 Notes, which we expect to accomplish. The TLA Credit Agreement also contains customary affirmative and negative covenants,
financial covenants, representations and warranties, events of default and other provisions. As of JuneA 30, 2024, we were in compliance with all financial covenants under the TLA Credit
Agreement. See Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for further discussion.2029 Convertible Senior NotesIn May 2024, we completed a private
placement of $287.5A million in aggregate principal amount of our 2029 Notes, and entered into an indenture with respect to the 2029 Notes. The 2029 Notes accrue interest at a fixed rate of
2.125% per year, payable semiannually in arrears on May 15th and November 15th of each year. The 2029 Notes mature on May 15, 2029. At JuneA 30, 2024, all $287.5A million of principal
was outstanding on the 2029 Notes. See Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for further discussion.2025 Convertible Senior NotesIn July 2020, we
completed a private placement of $402.5 million in aggregate principal amount of our 2025 Notes, and entered into an indenture with respect to the 2025 Notes. The 2025 Notes accrue interest
at a fixed rate of 0.750% per annum, payable semiannually in arrears on FebruaryA 1st and August 1st of each year. The 2025 Notes mature on August 1, 2025. In May 2024, we used part of the
net proceeds from the issuance of the 2029 Notes to repurchase $200.0A million aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Notes in privately negotiated transactions at a discount for

$191.4A million in cash (including accrued interest). The partial repurchase of the 2025 Notes resulted in a $7.5A million gain on early extinguishment of debt.At JuneA 30, 2024, the
outstanding principal on the 2025 Notes was $202.5 million. See Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for further discussion.Pacira BioSciences, Inc.
| Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 47Table of ContentsFuture Capital RequirementsWe believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale investments and cash received from
product sales will be sufficient to enable us to fund our operating expenses, capital expenditure requirements and payment of the interest and principal on our TLA Term Loan, 2025 Notes and
2029 Notes through the next 12 months. Our future use of operating cash and capital requirements will depend on many forward-looking factors, including, but not limited to:a€¢the cost and
timing of the potential milestone payments to former Flexion stockholders, which could be up to an aggregate of $372.3A million if certain regulatory and commercial milestones are met. See
Note 9, Financial Instruments, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for more information;a€¢the impact of global economic conditionsa€”including the impact of
inflation&€”on our product, material and labor costs, supply chain, longer lead-times, an inability to secure a sufficient supply of materials, our operating expenses and our business strategy;a€
¢the timing of and extent to which the holders of our 2025 Notes and 2029 Notes elect to convert their 2025 Notes and 2029 Notes, the timing of principal and interest payments on our TLA
Term Loan and the timing and impact of increases to the variable interest rate on our TLA Term Loan borrowings in accordance with the terms of the TLA Credit Agreement;a€¢the costs and
our ability to successfully continue to expand the commercialization of EXPAREL, ZILRETTA and ioveraA°;a€¢the cost and timing of expanding and maintaining our manufacturing facilities;a€
¢the cost and timing of additional strategic investments, including additional investments under existing agreements;a€¢the costs related to legal and regulatory matters;a€¢the costs of



performing additional clinical trials for our products, including the additional pediatric trials required by the FDA and EMA as a condition of the approval of EXPAREL;a€¢the costs for the
development and commercialization of other product candidates;a€¢the costs and timing of future payments under our employee benefit plans, including but not limited to our cash long-term
incentive plan and non-qualified deferred compensation plan;a€¢the timing and the number of shares of our common stock repurchased through our share repurchase program; anda€¢the
extent to which we acquire or invest in products, businesses and technologies.We may require additional debt or equity financing to meet our future operating and capital requirements. We
have no committed external sources of funds, and additional equity or debt financing may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all. In particular, capital market disruptions or negative
economic conditions may hinder our access to capital.Critical Accounting Estimates For a description of critical accounting policies that affect our significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, refer to our 2023 Annual Report. There have been no significant changes to our critical accounting policies nor any recently issued
accounting pronouncements that are expected to have a material impact on our financial results since DecemberA 31, 2023.Contractual ObligationsThere have been no material changes in our
contractual obligations relating to our indebtedness, lease obligations and purchase obligations from those reported in our 2023 Annual Report. For more information on our contractual
obligations and commercial commitments, see Part II, Item 7 in our 2023 Annual Report.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 48Table of ContentsltemA 3. QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKThe primary objective of our cash equivalents and investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximizing the
income that we receive from our investments without significantly increasing risk. We invest in corporate bonds, commercial paper, asset-backed securities and U.S. Treasury and other
government agency notes for purposes other than trading which are reported at fair value. These securities are subject to interest rate risk and credit risk. This means that a change in
prevailing interest rates may cause the fair value of the investment to fluctuate. For example, if we hold a security that was issued with a fixed interest rate at the then-prevailing rate and the
interest rate later rises, we expect that the fair value of our investment will decline. A hypothetical 100 basis point increase in interest rates would have reduced the fair value of our available-
for-sale securities at JuneA 30, 2024 by approximately $0.7A million.The fair value of our 2025 Notes is impacted by both the fair value of our common stock and interest rate fluctuations. As
ofA JuneA 30, 2024, the estimated fair value of the 2025 Notes was $938 per $1,000 principal amount. See Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for
further discussion of our 2025 Notes, which bear interest at a fixed rate. At JuneA 30, 2024, $202.5 million of principal remains outstanding on the 2025 Notes.The fair value of our 2029 Notes
is impacted by both the fair value of our common stock and interest rate fluctuations. As of JuneA 30, 2024, the estimated fair value of the 2029 Notes was $996 per $1,000 principal amount.
See Note 8, Debt, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for further discussion of our 2029 Notes, which bear interest at a fixed rate. At JuneA 30, 2024, $287.5
million of principal remains outstanding on the 2029 Notes.The TLA Term Loan provides for a single-advance term loan in the principal amount of $150.0A million and is scheduled to mature on
March 31, 2028. Each term loan borrowing that is a term benchmark borrowing or daily simple SOFR borrowing bears interest at a rate per annum equal to (i) the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate or
Adjusted Daily Simple SOFR (as each is defined in the TLA Credit Agreement), plus (ii) a spread based on our Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio ranging from 3.00% to 3.75%. At JuneA 30,
2024, the outstanding principal on the TLA Term Loan was $110.9A million. As of JuneA 30, 2024, borrowings under the TLA Term Loan consisted entirely of term benchmark borrowings at a
rate of 8.43%. A hypothetical 100 basis point increase in interest rates would increase interest expense over the next 12 months by approximately $1.1A million, based on the balance
outstanding for these borrowings as of JuneA 30, 2024.We have agreements with certain vendors and partners that operate in foreign jurisdictions. The more significant transactions are
primarily denominated in the U.S. Dollar, subject to an annual adjustment based on changes in currency exchange rates.Additionally, our accounts receivable are primarily concentrated with
four large wholesalers of pharmaceutical products. In the event of non-performance or non-payment, there may be a material adverse impact on our financial condition, results of operations or
net cash flow.ItemA 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURESEvaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresAs required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report. As defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures which are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SECa€™s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of JuneA 30, 2024.Changes in Internal Control over Financial ReportingThere have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the quarter ended JuneA 30, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.Pacira BioSciences,
Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 49Table of ContentsInherent Limitations on Effectiveness of ControlsOur management, including the Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control systema€™ s objectives will be met. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Projections of any evaluation
of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with
policies or procedures.PARTA II 4€” OTHER INFORMATIONItemA 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGSFor information related to Item 1. Legal Proceedings, refer to Note 15, Commitments and
Contingencies, to ourcondensed consolidated financial statements included herein.ItemA 1A. RISK FACTORSYou should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A. a€ceRisk
Factorsa€ in our 2023 Annual Report, which could materially affect our business, financial condition, cash flows or future results. There have been no material changes in our risk factors
included in our 2023 Annual Report. The risks described in our 2023 Annual Report are not the only risks facing our Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or
that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or future results.ItemA 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND
USE OF PROCEEDSPurchases of Equity Securities by the RegistrantThe following table provides information on our share repurchases during the three months ended JuneA 30, 2024:Issuer
Purchases of Equity SecuritiesPeriodTotal Numberof Shares PurchasedAverage PricePaid Per Share (1)Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs
(2)Approximate Dollar Value of Shares that May Yet be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs (1)April 1, 2024 4€“ April 30, 20244€”$a€”A 4€”$150,000,000A May 1, 2024 a€“ May 31,
2024837,240$29.86A 837,240$125,000,000A June 1, 2024 4€“ June 30, 20244€”$a€”A 4€”$125,000,000A Total837,240$29.86A 837,240$125,000,000A (1) The average price paid per shares
excludes $0.1 million of excise tax incurred on share repurchases for the three months ended JuneA 30, 2024. The remaining authorization outstanding for repurchases of common stock also
exclude the excise tax incurred.(2) Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of common stock under a share repurchase program adopted and announced in May 2024. The share
repurchase program authorizes the Company to purchase up to an aggregate of $150.0 million of the Companya€™ s outstanding common stock. Repurchases under this program may be made
at managementa€™s discretion on the open market or through privately negotiated transactions, including plans that comply with Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act. The share repurchase
program may be suspended or discontinued at any time by the Company and has an expiration date of December 31, 2026.The timing of any repurchases and the actual number of shares
repurchased will depend on a variety of factors, including our stock price, corporate and regulatory requirements, tax implications, restrictions under our debt obligations, other uses for capital,
impacts on the value of remaining shares, and market and economic conditions.Refer to Note 10, Stockholdersa€™ Equity, to our condensed consolidated financial statements included herein
for more information on our share repurchases.Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 50Table of ContentsItemA 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIESNone.ItemA 4. MINE
SAFETY DISCLOSURESNot applicable.ltemA 5. OTHER INFORMATIONRule 10b5-1 Trading PlansDuring the quarter ended JuneA 30, 2024, no director or executive officer of the Company
adopted or terminated a &€ceRule 10b5-1 trading arrangementa€ or 4€cenon-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,a€ as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.Pacira BioSciences,
Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 51Table of ContentsItemA 6. EXHIBITSThe exhibits listed below are filed or furnished as part of this report.Exhibit NumberDescription4.1Indenture, dated as of
May 14, 2024, by and between the Registrant and Computershare Corporate Trust, National Association.(1)4.2Form of Global 2.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2029 (included in Exhibit
4.1).(1)10.1+First Amendment, dated as of May 8, 2024, to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2023, by and among Pacira BioSciences, Inc., the lenders from time to time party thereto
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent.(2)10.2Form of Capped Call Transaction Confirmation.(1)10.3Fifth Amendment to Consulting Agreement, dated June 12, 2024, between
the Registrant and Gary Pace.***31.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to RuleA 13a-14(a)A and 15d-14(a), as amended.*A A 31.2Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to RuleA 13a-14(a)A and 15d-14(a), as amended.*A A 32.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionA 1350, as adopted pursuant to
SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**A A 101The following materials from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Pacira BioSciences, Inc. for the quarter ended JuneA 30, 2024,
formatted in iXBRL (Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income; (iv) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Equity; (v) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows; and (vi) the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.*104Cover Page Interactive Data File (Formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).*Filed
herewith.**Furnished herewith.**Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.+Schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-
K. The Company hereby undertakes to supplementally furnish copies of any omitted schedules and exhibits to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.(1)Incorporated by
reference to the Companya€™s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 14, 2024.(2)Incorporated by reference to the Companya€™s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 8, 2024.Pacira
BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 52Table of ContentsSIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of SectionA 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. PACIRA BIOSCIENCES,A INC.(REGISTRANT)Date:July 30, 2024By:A /s/ FRANK D. LEEFrank D.
LeeChief Executive Officer and Director(Principal Executive Officer)Date:July 30, 2024By:/s/ CHARLES A. REINHART, IlICharles A. Reinhart, IIIChief Financial Officer(Principal Financial
Officer)Pacira BioSciences, Inc. | Q2 2024 Form 10-Q | Page 53DocumentExhibit 10.3FIFTH AMENDMENT TOCONSULTING AGREEMENTThis Amendment (this &€ceAmendmenta€) to the
Consulting Agreement dated June 2, 2011, as restated and amended, (the &€ceConsulting Agreementa€) by and between Pacira Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (4€cePaciraa€) and Gary Pace, Ph.D. (the
a€ceConsultanta€) (together, the 4€oePartiesa€) is made effective as of June 12, 2024 (4€ccAmendment Effective Dated€) with respect to the following recitals and agreements:WHEREAS,
Pacira retained the Consultant to provide certain services pursuant to the Consulting Agreement between the Parties; andWHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain provision(s) of the
SOW as described herein. NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises, covenants and agreements set forth below and, in the Consulting Agreement, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties hereby acknowledge, the parties agree to modify the Consulting Agreement as follows:4€ ¢ Exhibit A to the
Consulting Agreement (as last amended under the Fourth Amendment to the Consulting Agreement dated November 27, 2015), shall be amended in its entirety and replaced with the Exhibit A
attached hereto. Except as expressly amended in this Amendment, all of the original terms and provisions of the Consulting Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects by each
party hereto and, except as expressly amended hereby, shall remain in full force and effect.IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment effective as of the Amendment
Effective Date. PACIRA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.GARY PACE/s/ KRISTEN WILLIAMS/s/ GARY PACESignatureSignatureKristen WilliamsGary PaceNameNameChief Administrative Officer and
SecretaryJune 12, 2024TitleDateJune 12, 2024DateEXHIBIT AScope of Services of Consultant:The scope of consulting work contemplated by this Agreement shall be as follows:Consultant will
provide formal business guidance, serving as a Scientific Advisor to Pacira. The term of these services will begin on July 1, 2024 and continue through and including June 30, 2025. Consultant
will work the equivalent of up to one (1) day per quarter. Consulting Fees:Consultant will be compensated at a rate of $3,200 per day per calendar quarter, to be paid at the beginning of each
calendar quarter. Consultant will submit invoices electronically to [**]. Consultant will be paid upon forty-five (45) days after Pacira receives a correct and undisputed invoice. The maximum
total charges of all billing under this Scope of Services is not to exceed $12,800.00.For the avoidance of doubt, Consultanta€™s previously granted stock options and restricted stock units shall
continue to vest according to the original terms of their grant agreements, and, in the case of stock options, Consultanta€™ s vested stock options will be eligible for exercise for the lesser of (i)
their stated term (i.e., ten (10) years from the grant date), or (ii) thirty-six (36) months following Consultanta€™ s cessation of services to the Company under the Consulting Agreement.Payment
shall be made by direct deposit (Electronic Information is on file), wire transfer or by check payable to the following address: The up-to-date Form W-9 is on file. Pacira will reimburse
Consultant for all pre-approved travel and related expenses pursuant to Pacirad€™s Travel and Expense Reimbursement Policy, a copy of which has been made available to the Consultant.
Consultant is responsible for making all travel arrangements through their travel agent, unless otherwise instructed. The Pacira Contact will be:DocumentExhibitA 31.1A CERTIFICATIONA I,
Frank D. Lee, certify that:A 1.1 have reviewed this quarterly report on FormA 10-Q of Pacira BioSciences,A Inc. (the 4€ceRegistranta€);2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4.The Registranta€™s other certifying officer
and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e)A and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(HA and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:(a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;(b)designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;(c)evaluated the effectiveness of the Registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d)disclosed in this report any
change in the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registranta€™ s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrantd€™s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The Registranta€™s other
certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registranta€™ s auditors and the audit committee of the
Registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):(a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registranta€™ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and(b)any fraud, whether or not
material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting.A Date: July 30, 2024/s/ FRANK D.

LEEA Frank D. LeeA Chief Executive Officer and DirectorA (Principal Executive Officer)DocumentExhibitA 31.2A CERTIFICATIONA I, Charles A. Reinhart, I1I, certify that:A 1.1 have reviewed
this quarterly report on FormA 10-Q of Pacira BioSciences,A Inc. (the 4€ceRegistranta€);2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit



to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4.The Registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclpsure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e)A and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act

RulesA 13a-15(f)A and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:(a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;(b)designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;(c)evaluated the effectiveness of the Registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d)disclosed in this report any change in the Registranta€™s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The Registranta€™ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on
our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registranta€™ s auditors and the audit committee of the Registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):(a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the Registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and(b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting. A Date: July 30, 2024/s/ CHARLES A. REINHART, IIIA Charles A. Reinhart, ITIA Chief Financial

OfficerA (Principal Financial Officer)DocumentExhibitA 32.1A CERTIFICATIONS OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERPURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION
1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. A A§1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, the undersigned certifies that this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q of Pacira BioSciences,A Inc. for the quarter ended JuneA 30, 2024, fully complies with the requirements of

SectionA 13(a)A or 15(d)A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in this report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of Pacira BioSciences,A Inc. at the dates and for the periods indicated. A Date: July 30, 2024/s/ FRANK D. LEEA Frank D. LeeA Chief Executive Officer and DirectorA (Principal
Executive Officer)Date: July 30, 2024/s/ CHARLES A. REINHART, IIIA Charles A. Reinhart, IIIA Chief Financial OfficerA (Principal Financial Officer)



